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BOARD’S REPORT

To the Members,

The Directors are pleased to present the 12" Annual Report of Oriental Nagpur Betul
Highway Limited (the Company) on the business and operations of the Company along with
the audited financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

1. Financial Results

The financial performance of the Company during the financial year ended March 31, 2022
is summarized below:

Particulars Standalone
For the year ended 31* | For the year
March 2022 ended 31* March
2021
Net Sales/Revenue from Operations 11,84,56,81,039 4,75,18,64,748
Other Income 75,75,68,585 80,81,88,118
Total Revenue 12,60,32,49,624 5,56,00,52,866
Total Operating Expenditure 10,17,43,41,428 3,07,40,31,600
Gross Profit after Depreciation, Interest | 2,42,89,08,196 2,48,60,21,266
but before Tax
Tax Expenses 77,89,89,101 32,51,55,840
Net Profit/(Loss) for the year 1,64,99,19,095 2,160,865,426

Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS)

The Financial Statements of your Company have been in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended.

2. State of Company’s affair

The Company is formed for specific purpose of undertaking Projects related to “Four Laning
of Nagpur-Saoner-Betul Section of NH-69 from km. 3.000 to km. 59.300 in the state of
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Maharashtra and km. 137.00 to km. 257.400 in the State of Madhya Pradesh on DBFOT on

Annuity Basis receivable on semi-annual basis.

Overall operating performance of the Company has been satisfactory and the project is
being managed, operated and maintained as per the relevant provisions of the Concession
Agreement. The Company is timely receiving semi-annuities payment from NHAI.

The details of gross annuity received since the last report of the board is as follows:

Annuity Date Amount Whether received
No. on time
Thirteenth | 19.08.2021 2,90,80,00,000/- Yes

Fourteenth | 18.02.2022 2,90,80,00,000/- Yes

Fifteenth 11.04.2022 2,90,80,00,000/- Yes

Covid-19
As the project undertaken by the Company is an Annuity project, there has been no impact
on the revenues and we have received all annuities in full till date.

3. Dividend

The Board of Directors of your company has paid interim dividend of Rs. 137.53 crore during
the financial year under review.

4. Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public falling within the ambit of
Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’), and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014.

5. Change in the nature of business:

There was no change in the nature of Business of the Company during the period under
review.
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6. Share Capital

During the year under review, there has been no change in the paid up capital equity share
capital of the Company and the present paid up equity share capital is Rs 18,13,45,000/-
divided into 1,81,34,500 equity shares of Rs. 10/-each.

7. Debentures

During the financial year 2016-17 and 2017-18, the Company had issued Non-Convertible
Debentures (NCDs) to the tune of Rs. 2925.36 Crores under Series A, B & C on private
placement; which are listed on the Debt segment of National Stock Exchange of India
Limited. The Company is in compliance with all reserve requirements as per applicable law
LODR (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 & Debenture
Trust Deed.

8. Transfer to Reserves

During the Financial year under review, the Company has transferred a sum of Rs. 165
crore to the Reserves and Surplus account.

9. Transfer Of Unclaimed Dividend To Investor Education And Protection Fund

There were no unclaimed Dividend(s) in the previous year which were required to be
transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund Account during the year as per the
provisions of Section 125(2) of the Act.

10. Material Changes Affecting Financial Position

As part of the settlement, Settlement Agreement was executed on behalf of the Company
with NHAI dated March 16, 2022 whereby a net amount of Rs. 582.75 Crores is payable by
NHAI in full and final settlement in respect of all claims, counter claims, negative/ positive
Change of Scope and all other various disputes under the Concession Agreement.

On March 31, 2022, NHAI issued a letter citing release of settlement payment in pursuance
of Settlement Agreement for an amount of Rs. 547.14 Crores after deducting taxes.
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Further, as a part of the settlement agreement, NHAI has preponed the annuity payable to
the Company, as a result of which the Company shall be in receipt of the Annuity Amount
129 days (approx.) in advance.

11. Annual Return

The extract of Annual Return as provided under sub-section (3) of Section 92, in format
MGT-9, for the Financial Year 2021-22 is annexed as Annexure A and forms part of this
report.

The Company has placed a copy of the Annual Return as on March 31, 2022 on it’s website
at www.nagpurbetulhighway.in.

12. Directors/Key Managerial Personnel

During the Financial Year under review, one independent director was appointed in the
Company and details are mentioned below:-

Sl. Date of Event | NAME OF DIRECTORS Category of | APPOINTMENT/

No. Directorship RESIGNATION
1 31.03.2022 Mrs. Smita Rastogi Independent Appointment
Director

In terms of the Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014, all Independent Directors of the Company have enrolled themselves on the
Independent Directors Databank and will undergo the online proficiency self-assessment
test within the specified timeline unless exempted under the aforesaid Rules.

13. Declaration by Independent Directors
Independent Directors of the Company have submitted the requisite declaration under

section 149(7) that they meet the criteria of independence as provided under section
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.
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14. Meetings of the Board of Directors

The Board of the Company has met 4 times (Four meetings of the Board of Directors were
held dated (08/05/2021, 05/08/2021, 30/10/2021 & 03/02/2022). The intervening gap
between two consecutive meetings was not more /than the period as prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013.

All the necessary statutory requirements under the Act have been complied with for
convening the aforementioned meetings.

15. Committees of the Board
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company had constituted & its scope has been defined as per
provisions of Section 177 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed there under. The
present composition of the Audit Committee is as under:

S. No. | Name Designation
1. Mr. Deepak Kukreja Chairman
2. Mr. Nikhil Dhingra Member
3. Mr. Ranveer Sharma Member
4, Mrs. Monika Kohli Member
5. Mrs. Smita Rastogi Member

The Audit Committee Meetings of the Company has met 4 times (Four meetings of the
Audit Committee were held dated (08/05/2021, 05/08/2021, 30/10/2021 & 03/02/2022).
The necessary quorum was present throughout, for all meetings.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company had constituted & its scope
has been defined as per the provisions of Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rules framed there under. The present composition of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is as under:
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S. No. | Name Designation
1. Mr. Nikhil Dhingra Member
2. Mr. Ranveer Sharma Member
3. Mrs. Monika Kohli Chairperson
4, Mr. Deepak Kukreja Member

NRC policy indicating the guiding factors in relation to appointment and removal of
Director, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management and remuneration to be paid,
etc has been recommended by the NRC Committee and has been approved by the Board is
annexed as Annexure B.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings of the Company has met 2 times
(Two meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held dated
(30/10/2021 & 03/02/2022).

The necessary quorum was present throughout, for all meetings.
Corporate Social Responsibility
The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) of the Company had constituted & its scope has

been defined as per the provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules
framed there under. The present composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility is as

under:
S. No. | Name Designation
1. Mr. Nikhil Dhingra Member
2. Mr. Ranveer Sharma Member
3. Mrs. Monika Kohli Member
4, Mr. Deepak Kukreja Chairman

CSR policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company has been
recommended by the CSR Committee and has been approved by the Board is annexed as
Annexure C.
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During the year under review, one meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee was held on 30/10/2021. The necessary quorum was present throughout the
meetings.

The Annual Report on Corporate Social Report activities is furnished in Annexure-D which is
attached to this report.

16. Manner of Evaluation of Performance of the Board, its Committees and Individual
Directors

In order to ensure the effectiveness of the Board Governance, the Companies Act, 2013
requires a statement indicating the manner in which formal annual evaluation has been
made by the Board of its own performance and that of its Committees and individual
Directors.

The mechanism to evaluate the performance, as per the statutory requirement, was
considered and adopted by the Board, based on the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee.

In order to do the evaluation, structured evaluation criteria were considered by the Board
for evaluating itself/ Committees and individual Directors, which were broadly based on
certain specific parameters. The Directors expressed overall satisfaction on the evaluation
process.

17. Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186
As per Section 186(11) your Company is exempted from compliance of provisions of Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 being engaged in the business of providing infrastructural
facilities.

18. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties
All related party transactions during the year have been entered into in the ordinary course

of business and on an arm’s length basis and are in compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. There are no materially significant Related Party
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Transactions entered into by the Company with Promoters & Directors which may have a
potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

Accordingly, in compliance with the Proviso IV to Section 188(1) of the Companies Act,
2013, there are no contracts or arrangements with related parties pursuant to Clause (h) of
Sub section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

19. Auditors and Auditor’s Report
A. Statutory Auditors

The Statutory Auditor of the Company, M/s. KG Somani & Co., Chartered Accountants, New
Delhi bearing firm Registration no. - 006591N were appointed for 5 years as Statutory
Auditors of the Company to hold office from the 10" Annual General Meeting to till the
conclusion of the 15™ Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The requirements to place the matter relating to appointment of Statutory Auditor for
ratification by members at every Annual General Meeting is done away with vide
notification dated May 07, 2018 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, New Delhi.
Accordingly, no resolution is proposed for ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors,
who were appointment in the Annual General Meeting held on 10" Annual General
Meeting.

The Statutory Auditors have, in their report to the Board of Directors have not made any
qualified opinion.

B. Cost Auditors

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules 2014 framed thereunder, the Board of Directors of the Company had
appointed M/s Sandeep & Associates, Cost Accountants bearing Firm Registration No.
101523 as the Cost Auditors of the Company, for conducting the audit of cost records for
the financial year ended March 31, 2022.
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C. Secretarial Auditors

The Board had appointed M/S S. Jindal & Associates, Company Secretaries to conduct the
Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2021-22 and the secretarial audit report is annexed
to this Board Report as Annexure-E.

D. Internal Auditors

Pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Companies (Account) Rules
2014 framed thereunder, the Board of Directors of the Company had appointed Internal
Auditors, for conducting internal audit for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

Reporting of Frauds by Auditors

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors and Secretarial Auditor
have not reported any instances of frauds committed in the Company by its Officers or
Employees to the Audit Committee under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013,
details of which needs to be mentioned in this Report.

20. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future:

There was no significant and material order passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
during the financial year 2021-22, impacting the going concern status and company’s
operations in future.

21. Risk Management

The Board of Directors of the Company has recently formed a Risk Management Committee
to frame, implement and monitor the risk management plan for the Company.

The Committee is responsible for monitoring and reviewing the risk management plan and
ensuring its effectiveness. The Audit Committee has additional oversight in the area of
financial risks and controls. The major risks identified by the businesses and functions will
be systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.
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22. Details of Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies
During the year under review, Your Company didn’t have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture and
Associate Company as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. Thus, your Company is

not required to provide any detail as per Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

23. Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and
outgo

Conservation of Energy and Technology absorption:

Since the Company does not own any manufacturing facility, the particulars relating to
conservation of energy and technology absorption stipulated in Rule 8 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable.

However, as a Project Entity of Oriental InfraTrust, the Company has adopted and is
implementing various Business and Mandatory Policies w.e.f 18" May, 2019. As part of
these policies, the Company is complying with the EHSS Policy which makes it compliant
to IFC Performance Standards; Water & Energy Conservation are part of the said
Performance Standards. Technology Absorption is required to the extent it benefits
environment protection or conservation.

Foreign Exchange earnings or outgo in Foreign Exchange during the period:

There were no foreign exchange earnings or outgo during the year.

24. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended on 31.03.2022,
the applicable accounting standards have been followed;

(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
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and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and
of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care towards the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

(d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

25. SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

The provisions of Chapter |, II, Ill, and V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2021 are applicable to Listed Entity which has listed its Non
Convertible Debt Securities. Since, the Company had issued listed Non Convertible Debt
Securities thus the said chapters are applicable to the Company & it is complying with the
provisions of the said chapters as applicable.

Due to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment)
Regulations, 2021 which came into effect with effect from September 07, 2021, Regulation
15 to Regulation 27 of Chapter IV of the said regulations is also applicable to the Company
(being referred to as high value debt listed entity) on comply or explain basis until March
31, 2023 and the Company is endeavoring to comply with the provisions of the said chapter.

26. Secretarial Standards

Your Company complies with the Secretarial Standards on Meeting of Directors (SS-1) and
Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (SS-2).

27. Prevention, Prohibition and redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace
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As required under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013, a statement showing the number of complaints filed during the
financial year and the number of complaints pending as on the end of the financial year is
shown as under:

Category No. of No of complaints
No. of complaints pending complaints filed pending as at end of F.Y.
at the beginning of F.Y. | during the F.Y. 2021- 2021-22
2021-22 22
Sexual Nil Nil Nil

Harassment

28. Vigil Mechanism

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has established
a vigil mechanism to address the genuine concerns expressed by the employees and other
Directors. The Company has also provided adequate safeguards against victimization of
employees and Directors who express their concerns. The Company has also provided direct
access to the Directors of the Company on reporting issues concerning the interests of Co-
employees and the Company. No concern has been reported during the year.

29. Internal Financial Control and their Adequacy

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material
weakness in the design or operation was observed.

30. Particulars of Employees and Related Disclosures

The Company is 100% owned project entity of Oriental InfraTrust [a trust incorporated in
accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment
Trusts) Regulations, 2014]. All its operations are handled by the Project Manager and the
Investment Manager appointed in accordance with the registered Trust deed of Oriental
InfraTrust. Since the Company does not have any employee on its role, therefore the
provisions prescribed under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of
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the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is
not applicable.

31. Details of application made or any proceeding pending under the insolvency and
bankruptcy code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year along with their status as at
the end of the financial year.

There are no proceedings initiated/ pending against your company under the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company.

32. Details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one
time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the banks or
financial institutions along with the reasons thereof.

There was no instance of one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution.

33. Acknowledgements
Your Directors acknowledge with gratitude the cooperation received from the various
Government Authorities, including National Highways Authority of India and other

Regulatory Authorities, Banks, Financial Institutions and Members of the Company.

The Directors appreciate and value the contribution made by every employee and person
associated with the Company.

Date: 05.09.2022 By Order of the Board
Place: New Delhi for Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Limited
Sd/- Sd/-
Nikhil Dhingra Ranveer Sharma
DIN: 07835556 DIN: 02483364
C- 401, Central Park-1 1003B, Sterling Sea face, near
Golf Course Road Poonam Chambers, Annie
Sector-42 Gurgaon 122009 Besant Road, Worli Mumbai
400018
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Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31.03.2022
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Annexure - A

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS
a) CIN:- U45400DL2010PLC203649
b) Registration Date:- 04/06/2010
c¢) Name of the Company:- ORIENTAL NAGPUR BETUL HIGHWAY LIMITED
d) Category/ Sub-Category of the Company:- PUBLIC LIMITED

Address of the Registered office and contact details:- OSE COMMERCIAL BLOCK, HOTEL
ALOFT, ASSET 5B, AEROCITY, HOSPITALITY DISTRICT, IGI AIRPORT, NEW DELHI - 110 037

Telephone with STD
Fax Number
E-Mail Address

Town/City:-
Whether Listed Company:-

Area Code Number
011 46044604

ose.secretarial@gmail.com

New Delhi
No

Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent:

Mr. Sharwan Mangla, General Manager
MAS Services Limited

T-34, lind Floor, Block T Okhla Industrial Estate, Phase Il, New Delhi — 110020
Tel: 011-2638 3145

PRINICIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall

be stated:-

Sl. No.

Name and Description of
main products/services

NIC Code of the
Product/ Service

% to total turnover
of the company

Construction and
Maintenance of Roads

100%




PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S.
No.

Name and Address
of the Company

CIN/GLN

Holding/
Subsidiary/
Associate

% of
shares
held

Applicable
Section

*

*The entire shareholding is held by Oriental InfraTrust which is registered with Securities and Exchange
Board of India (SEBI) under SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014. The trust is not
considered as a company or body corporate for the purposes of ascertaining holding/subsidiary/associate

under the Companies Act, 2013.

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as Percentage of Total Equity)

1)

Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

the year

No. of shares held at the beginning of

No. of shares held at the end of the %

year

Change
during
the year

p
h
y
s
i

o
a
[

Promoters

Indian

Individual/

Central Govt.

0

0

0

State Govt.

0

0

0

Bodies Corp.

0

0

0

0

Any Other....

18134500

18134500

18134500

18134500

Sub- Total (A) (1)

18134500

18134500

18134500

18134500

2. Foreign

a) NRIs-
Individuals

b) Other-
Individuals

) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks/FI

e) Any other....




Sub-Total (A) (2)

0

0

0

0

Total Shareholding
of Promoter
(A)=(A)(1)

+(A)(2)

18134500

18134500

18134500

18134500

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual
Funds

b) Banks/FI

) Central Govt.

d) State Govt.

e) Venture
Capital Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture Capital

i) Funds
Others(specify)

Sub-Total (B) (1)

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian
i) Overseas

b) Individuals
i) Individual
Shareholders
holding nominal
share capital up to
Rs. 1 lakh

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of rs. 1 lakh

c) Others
(specify)

Sub- Total (B) (2)

Total Public
Shareholding (B)=
(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

C. Shares held
by Custodian for




GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total 18134500 18134500 18134500 18134500
(A+B+C)

2) Shareholding of Promoters

SIl. | Shareholder’ | Shareholding at the beginning of the Shareholding at the end of the %
No. s Name year year change
No. of % of % of shares No. of % of | % of shares
Shares total Pledged/ Shares total Pledged/
shares of | encumbere share | encumbere
the d to total s of d to total )
company shares the shares during
comp the year
any
J Oriental 18134494 18134494 99.99 NIL
Infratrust
J Indian NIL
Technocrat
Limited*
J Mr. Sanjit
Bakshi*
J{ Mr.
Kanwaljit
Singh
Bakshi*
4 Mrs. Minu
Bakshi*
4 Ms. Noor
Bakshi*
J{ Mr. Gaurav
Puri*
Total 18134500 18134500

in
shareho
Iding

* Nominee of Oriental Infratrust

3) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (Please specify, if there is no change) NIL

Name of Shareholding Date Increase / | Reason Cumulative
Shareholders (Decrease) Shareholding during
in the year
Shareholdi (01.04.21 - 31.03.22)
ng
No. of Shares % of No. of | % of total
at the total shares shares of
beginning of shares the




the year/end
of the year
(31.03.22)

company

4) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders(other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRs) NIL

Cumulative
Shareholding during
the year

% of total | No. of % of total
shares of | shares shares of
the the
company company
At the beginning of the year NIL NIL

Date wise Increase/ Decrease NIL NIL

in Promoters share holding
during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease
(e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/swe
at equity etc)

At the end of the year(or on
the date of separation, if
separation during the year)

Sl Shareholding at the
No. beginning of the year

No. of
shares

For Each of the Top 10
Shareholders

5) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: NIL

Increase / Reason Cumulative
(Decrease)

in the year
Shareholdi

ng

Name of Shareholding Date

Shareholders Shareholding during

No. of
Shares at
the
beginning
of the
year/end
of the year

% of total
shares of
the
Company

% of total
shares of
the
company




V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for

payment

(Amtin Rs.)

Secured loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured Loans Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year

i)  Principal Amount

2108,37,42,047

4,10,35,22,098

2518,72,64,145

ii) Interest due but not paid

47,99,045

29,98,21,919

30,46,20,963

iii) Interest accrued but not
due

Total (i+ii+iii)

2108,85,41,092

4,40,33,44,017

2549,18,85,109

Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year

Principal Amount

194,30,97,094

194,30,97,094

Interest Amount

4,50,386

8,53,757

13,04,143

Net Change

194,35,47,480

8,53,757

194,44,01,237

Indebtedness at the end of the

financial year

i) Principal Amount

1914,06,44,953

4,10,35,22,098

2324,41,67,051

ii) Interest due but not paid

43,48,659

29,89,68,162

30,33,16,821

i) Interest accrued but not
due

Total (i+ii+iii)

1914,49,93,612

4,40,24,90,260

2354,74,83,872

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: NIL

No.

Sl. Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/Manager

Total
Amount

Gross salary

a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17 (1)
of the Income-tax Act,
1961

b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act,
1961
Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3)
Income-tax Act, 1961




Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
— As % of profit
— Others, specify...

Others, please specify

Total(A)

Ceiling as per the Act

Remuneration to other directors: NI

L

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total
Amount

1. Independent Directors
e Fee for attending
board committee
meetings
Commission
Others, please
specify

Total (1)

2. Other Non- Executive
Directors
e Fee for attending

board committee
meetings
Commission
Others, please
specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

Remuneration to key Managerial Personnel Other than MD/Manager/WTD- NIL

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO

Company
Secretary

Gross salary
a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17 (1)
of the Income-tax Act,
1961
b) Value of perquisites u/s




17(2) Income-tax Act,
1961
Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3)
Income-tax Act, 1961
Stock Option
Sweat Equity
Commission
— As % of profit
— Others, specify...
Others, please specify
Total

PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Section of Brief Details of Authority | Appeal
the Description | Penalty/ [RD/ made, if
Companies Punishment/ NCLT / any

Act Compounding | COURT] (give
fees imposed Details)

A. COMPANY
Penalty NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL

B. DIRECTORS
Penalty NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty NIL
Punishment NIL
Compounding NIL

Date: 05.09.2022 By Order of the Board
Place: New Delhi for Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Nikhil Dhingra Ranveer Sharma

DIN: 07835556 DIN: 02483364

C- 401, Central Park-1 1003B, Sterling Sea face, near

Golf Course Road Poonam Chambers, Annie
Sector-42 Gurgaon 122009 Besant Road, Worli Mumbai 400018




Annexure B
Nomination and Remuneration Policy

INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of every public company, having paid up
capital of Rs. 10 Crores or more and/or Turnover of Rs. 100 Crores or more and/or Aggregate
outstanding loans or borrowings or debentures or deposits exceeding Rs. 50 Crores, shall constitute
a Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Company has constituted a Nomination and
Remuneration Committee as required by the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules prescribed
thereunder.

This Committee and the Policy is formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto.

1.1. Purpose of the Policy

The Key Objectives of the Committee are:

(a) To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.

(b) To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to
the Board for further evaluation.

(c) To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.

The Policy ensures that:

(a) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully;

(b) Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmark; and

(c) Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance

objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

1.2. Definitions

1.2.1. “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.
1.2.2. “Company” means “Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Limited.”

1.2.3. “Employees’ Stock Option” means the option given to the directors, officers or employees
of a company or of its holding company or subsidiary company or companies, if any, which
gives such directors, officers or employees, the benefit or right to purchase, or to subscribe
for, the shares of the company at a future date at a pre-determined price.

1.2.4. “Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

1.2.5. “Key Managerial Personnel” or “KMP”means Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder.



1.2.6.

1.2.7.

1.2.8.

1.2.9.

1.3.

(As per Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the following are whole-time Key Managerial
Personnel:
(i)  Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer or the Manager and in their absence a
whole-time Director;
(ii)  Company Secretary; and
(iiiy  Chief Financial Officer.)

“Nomination and Remuneration Committee” shall mean a Committee of Board of
Directors of the Company, constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules as prescribed thereunder.

“Policy or This Policy” means, “Nomination and Remuneration Policy.”

“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for
services rendered by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act,
1961.

“Senior Management” mean personnel of the Company who are members of its core
management team excluding Board of Directors. This would include all members of

management one level below the executive directors, including all the functional heads.

Interpretation

Words and expressions used in this Policy shall have the same meanings respectively assigned to
them in the Companies Act, 2013 or the rules framed thereon.

2. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

2.1.

Role of the Committee

(a) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in

senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board
their appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director’s
performance.

(b) Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and

independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

(c) Formulating the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

(d) Devising a policy on Board diversity

(e) Ensuring that the Board comprises of a balanced combination of Executive Directors and

Non-Executive Directors;

(f) All information about the Directors/ Managing Directors / Whole time Directors / Key

Managerial Personnel i.e., background details, past remuneration, recognition or awards,
job profile shall be considered and disclosed to shareholders, where required;

(g) The Committee shall take into consideration and ensure the compliance of provisions under

Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 for appointing and fixing remuneration of Managing
Directors / Whole-time Directors;



(h) While approving the remuneration, the Committee shall take into account financial position
of the Company, trend in the industry, qualification, experience and past performance of the
appointee;

(i) The Committee shall be in a position to bring about objectivity in determining the
remuneration package while striking the balance between the interest of the Company and

the shareholders;

2.2. Composition of the Committee

(a) The Committee shall comprise of at least three (3) Directors, all of whom shall be non-
executive Directors and at least half shall be Independent.

(b) The Board shall reconstitute the Committee as and when required to comply with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable statutory requirement.

(c) Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum for the Committee meeting.
(d) Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.

(e) Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Directors.

2.3. Chairman of the Committee

(a) Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director.

(b) Chairman of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall not
Chair the Committee.

(c) In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall
choose one amongst them to act as Chairman.

(d) Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be present at the Annual
General Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’ queries.

2.4. Frequency of the Meetings of the Committee

The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required.

2.5. Committee Member’s Interest

(a) A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration
is discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated.

(b) The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the
meetings of the Committee.

2.6. Voting at the Meeting

(a) Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a majority of
votes of Members present and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be
deemed a decision of the Committee.

(b) In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote.



2.7.

Minutes of the Meeting

Proceedings of all meetings must be minuted and signed by the Chairman of the said meeting or the
Chairman of the next succeeding meeting. Minutes of the Committee meeting will be tabled at the
subsequent Board and Committee meeting.

3. APPLICABILITY

This Policy is Applicable to:

(a) Directors (Executive, Non-Executive and Independent)

(b) Key Managerial Personnel

(c) Senior Management Personnel

(d) Other employees as may be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

4. APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL

4.1.

Appointment criteria and qualifications

(a) Subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, if

any and OSE Group HR Policy, the Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity,
qualification, expertise and experience of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at
Senior Management level and recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

(b) The Committee has discretion to decide the adequacy of qualification, expertise and

experience for the concerned position.

(c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing

Director / Whole-time Director / Manager who has attained the age of seventy years.
Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age
of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on
the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the justification
for extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

4.2. Term / Tenure

4.2.1. Managing Director / Whole-time Director / Manager (Managerial Personnel)
The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managerial Personnel for a term
not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year
before the expiry of term.

4.2.2. Independent Director

(a) An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the
Board of the Company and will be eligible for re appointment on passing of a special
resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.



(b) No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such
Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of
ceasing to become an Independent Director.

Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years,
be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly
or indirectly.

(c) Atthe time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of
Boards on which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed
companies as an Independent Director and three listed companies as an Independent
Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company.

(d) The maximum number of public companies in which a person can be appointed as a
director shall not exceed ten.
For reckoning the limit of public companies in which a person can be appointed as
director, directorship in private companies that are either holding or subsidiary
company of a public company shall be included.

4.3. Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

The company shall familiarize the Independent Directors with the company, their roles, rights,
responsibilities in the company, nature of the industry in which the company operates, business
model of the company, etc., through various programmes.

4.4, Evaluation

Subject to Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the Committee shall carry out the evaluation of
Directors periodically.

4.5. Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, rules made
thereunder or under any other applicable laws, rules and regulations, the Committee may
recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP, subject to
the provisions and compliance of the applicable laws, rules and regulations.

4.6. Retirement

The Director, KMP and Personnel of Senior Management shall retire as per the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will
have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Personnel of Senior Management in the same
position / remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, in the interest and for
the benefit of the Company.

5. PROVISIONS RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, KMP AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

5.1. General

(a) The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to Managerial Personnel will be
determined by the Committee and recommended to the Board for approval. The
remuneration / compensation / commission etc. shall be subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company and Central Government, wherever required.



(b) The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Managerial Personnel shall be as per

the statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the
time being in force.

(c) Increments to the existing remuneration / compensation structure may be recommended

by the Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs approved by the
Shareholders in the case of Managerial Personnel, wherever required.

(d) Where any insurance is taken by a company on behalf of its Managing Director, Whole-time

5.2.

Director, Manager, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer or Company Secretary for
indemnifying any of them against any liability in respect of any negligence, default,
misfeasance, breach of duty or breach of trust for which they may be guilty in relation to the
company, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the
remuneration payable to any such personnel.

Remuneration to Managerial Personnel, KMP, Senior Management and Other
Employees

5.2.1.

5.2.2.

5.2.3.

5.2.4.

5.2.5.

5.3.

Fixed Pay

Managerial Personnel shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may be approved by
the Board on the recommendation of the Committee in accordance with the statutory
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time being in
force. The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer’s
contribution to provident fund, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be
decided and approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee and
approved by the shareholders and Central Government, wherever required.

Minimum Remuneration

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the
Company shall pay remuneration to its Managerial Personnel in accordance with the
provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and if it is not able to comply with such
provisions, with the prior approval of the Central Government.

Provisions for excess remuneration

If any Managerial Personnel draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of
remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013 or without the prior sanction of the Central Government, where required, he / she
shall refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for
the Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless
permitted by the Central Government.

The remuneration to Personnel of Senior Management shall be governed by the OSE Group
HR Policy.

The remuneration to other employees shall be governed by the OSE Group HR Policy.

Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Director

5.3.1.

Remuneration / Commission



The remuneration / commission shall be in accordance with the statutory provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time being in force.

5.3.2. Sitting Fees

The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for
attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof.

Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed the maximum amount as provided in
the Companies Act, 2013, per meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as may be
prescribed by the Central Government from time to time.

The sitting fee paid to Independent Directors and Women Directors, shall not be less than
the sitting fee payable to other directors.

5.3.3. Limit of Remuneration / Commission
Remuneration / Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by
shareholders, subject to the limit not exceeding 1% of the net profits of the Company
computed as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

5.3.4. Stock Options

An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company.

6. DISCLOSURES

The Company shall disclose the Policy on Nomination and Remuneration on group’s website www.
orientalindia.com.

7. AMENDMENT

Any amendment or modification in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder and any
other applicable regulation relating to Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall
automatically be applicable to the Company.



Annexure C

ORIENTAL NAGPUR BETUL HIGHWAY LIMITED
REGD OFF: OSE Commercial Block, Hotel Aloft, Assets 5B, Aerocity,
Hospitality District, 1GI Airport, New Delhi — 110 037
CIN: U45400DL2010PLC203649

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

The Company believes that it is imperative for an organization to give back a humble part of what it

takes from the society. We continuously strive to be entity that is socially committed by bringing

together all our processes under the ambit of Corporate Social Responsibility through proactive

initiatives.

We value employee volunteering and participation as key elements of our CSR vision. We would

contribute to the solution of social issues and pursue the realization of a prosperous society. We would

work towards minimizing environmental effects and utilizing resources towards the development of a

sustainable society that is in harmony with the environment

1. Purpose

The key purpose of this policy is to:

¢ Define what CSR means to us and the approach adopted to achieve our goals

¢ Define the kind of projects that will come under the ambit of CSR

e |dentify broad areas of intervention in which the company will undertake projects
e Serve as a guiding document to help execute and monitor CSR projects

2.Role of CSR Committee

The CSR Committee constituted in pursuance of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be
required to carry out the following activities:

a) Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall
indicate the activities to be undertaken by the company as specified in Schedule VII;

b) Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in clause (a);
and

¢) Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time to time.

3. Scope of CSR activities

Our CSR policy contributes to Company’s goals by adopting projects in the following areas of

intervention defined in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, as may be amended from time to

time as follows:

W

Promoting Education

Ensuring Environmental Sustainability
Rural Development Programs
Promoting Rural Sports
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ORIENTAL NAGPUR BETUL HIGHWAY LIMITED

REGD OFF: OSE Commercial Block, Hotel Aloft, Assets 5B, Aerocity,

Hospitality District, 1GI Airport, New Delhi — 110 037

CIN: U45400DL2010PLC203649

CSR Project or Activity

Area

Sector

Promoting Education programmes for skill development , adult
literacy awareness , support to educational institutes , Provide fees for|
a period of one year or more to the poor and meritorious, preferably
girl students of the school to enable them to get uninterrupted
education.

Local
Others

and

Promoting
education

Improvement of Environment by Green belt Development, Plantation
of saplings, Restoration of mined out lands, A forestation, Social
Forestry, Check Dams, Park.etc

Local
Others

and

Ensuring
Environmental
Sustainability

Social Empowerment programmes for Self /Gainful Employment
Opportunities — Prime Minister Kaushal Vikas Yogna (PMKVY)Training
of Rural Youth for Self Employment (TRYSEM) on Welding, Fabrication,
and other Electronic appliances.

To provide assistance to villagers having small patch of land to
develop farming, medicinal plants, farming & other cash crops to
make them economically dependent on their available land resources.

To develop infrastructural facilities for providing electricity through
Solar Lights or alternative renewal energy to the nearby villages Water
Supply including Drinking Water- i) Installation/Repair of Hand
Pumps/Tube Wells, Digging/Renovation of Wells, Gainful utilization
of waste water from Under -ground Mines for Cultivation or any other
purpose, Development/construction of Water Tank/Ponds, v) Rain
water-harvesting scheme, Formation of a Task Force of Volunteers to
educate people regarding vii)Proper use of drinking water.

Health Care organizing, health awareness Camps on i) AIDS TB and
Leprosy ,Social evils like alcohol, smoking, drug abuse etc. ,Child and
Mother care , Diet and Nutrition , Blood donation camps, Diabetics
detection & Hypertension Camps , Family Welfare, Senior Citizen
Health Care Wellness Clinics, Fully equipped Mobile Medical Vans.

Local
Others

and

Rural
Development
Programs

Sports and Culture programmes for Promotion/Development of sports
activities in nearby villages by conducting Tournaments
Providing sports materials for to the young and talented villagers.

Possibility of providing facilities for physically handicapped persons|
may be explored.

Local
Others

and

Promoting Rural
Sports




ORIENTAL NAGPUR BETUL HIGHWAY LIMITED

REGD OFF: OSE Commercial Block, Hotel Aloft, Assets 5B, Aerocity,
Hospitality District, 1GI Airport, New Delhi — 110 037
CIN: U45400DL2010PLC203649

4. Governance Structure

Our CSR governance structure will be headed by the Board Level CSR committee that will be
ultimately responsible for the CSR projects undertaken. The committee will report to our Board of
Directors.

5. Responsibilities of the Committee

e Formulate and update our CSR Policy, which will be approved by the Board

e Suggest areas of intervention to the Board

Approve projects that are in line with the CSR policy

Put monitoring mechanisms in place to track the progress of each project

Recommend the CSR expenditure to the Board who will approve it

To oversee the implementation of our CSR Policy, in compliance with the requirements of
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

6. CSR Budget
The total budget for the CSR projects will be decided by the CSR Committee.

The management will commit all the necessary resources required to meet the goals of
Corporate Sustainability/Corporate Social Responsibility as and when required.

In line with the above social responsibility and commitment towards the community as a whole, the
Company shall contribute in activities as outlined in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

%k %



Annexure D

Format For The Annual Report on CSR Activities to be Included in the Board's Report For Financial Year
Commencing on or After 1st Day of April, 2020

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

CSR policy contributes by undertaking livelihood support plan for promoting education, including special
education and employment enhancing vocation skills especially among children, women, elderly and the
differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects, which shall also eventually help in eradicating
the poverty.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. No. Name of Designation / | Number of meetings |Number of meetings of
Director Nature of of CSR Committee CSR Committee
Directorship held during the year | attended during the
year
1 Mr. Deepak Chairman 1 1
Kukreja
2 Ms. Monika Member 1 1
Kohli
3 Mr. Nikhil Member 1 1
Dhingra
4 Mr. Ranveer Member 1 0
Sharma

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by
the board are disclosed on the website of the company.www.nagpurbetulhighway.in

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of
rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the
report).Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year,
if any

SI. No. [Financial Year |Amount available for set-off from |[Amount required to be set-off
preceding financial years (in Rs) [for the financial year, if any (in
Rs)

1 - NIL NIL
Total

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).Rs. 2,73,93,17,214
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7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)Rs. 5,47,86,345

years.NA

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if anyNA

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c).Rs. 5,47,86,345

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Spent for the
Financial Year. Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified
(in Rs.) Unspent CSR Account as per | under Schedule VII as per second proviso to
section 135(6). section 135(5).
Amount. Date of Name of the Amount. Date of
transfer. Fund transfer.
NIL 5,47,86,345 28.04.2022 - - -
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1) (2) (3) | (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)

SI.| Name | Item | Local | Location of |Project)Amount|/Amount| Amount | Mode of Mode of
No| of the | from | area |the project. |[duratio|allocate |spent in|transferre|Implement | Implementatio
. |Project.|the list| (Yes/ n. |dforthel the dto ation - n - Through

of No). project | current | Unspent Direct Implementing
activiti (in Rs.). [financiall| CSR (Yes/No). Agency
esin L Year (in| Account
schedu State.|Distric Rs.). for the Nam C.SR .
t. . e |Registrati
le VI project as on
to the per number
Act. Section )
135(6) (in
Rs.).
2.
3.
Total




(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: NIL

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
SI. No. | Name | Item | Local | Location of [Amount Mode of Mode of
of the {from the| area | the project. | spent |implementation| implementation -
Project| list of | (Yes/ for the - Direct Through
activities| No). project| (Yes/No). implementing
in (in Rs.). agency.
schedule State.|District. Name. CSR
Vil to registration
the Act. &
number.
1. - - - - - - - -
3.

Total

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable NIL

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) NIL

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any

SI.N

o. Particular

Amount (in Rs.)

(i)

ITwo percent of average net profit of the company as
per section 135(5)

(ii)

Total amount spent for the Financial Year

(iii)

Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]

(iv)

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes
or activities of the previous financial years, if any

(v)

Amount available for set off in succeeding financial

years [(iii)-(iv)]




9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl. No.| Preceding Amount |Amount spent| Amount transferred to any| Amount
Financial Year.|transferred to in the fund specified under remaining to
Unspent CSR | reporting |Schedule VII as per section | be spent in
Account under|Financial Year 135(6), if any. succeeding
sect;?nn;s3)5 (6)  (inRs.). Name of| Amount | Date of f::aar:c'(?rl‘
) the Fund| (in Rs). |transfer. years.
Rs.)
1. 2020-21 5,09,46,375 78,00,000 - - - 4,31,46,375
2.
3.
Total 5,09,46,375 78,00,000 - - - 4,31,46,375

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial

year(s):
(1) | (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
Sl. No. [Project| Name of | Financial | Project Total Amount |Cumulative| Status of
ID. the Yearin [duration amount |spenton| amount the
Project. | which the allocated for| the spent at | project -
project was the project |project in| the end of [Completed
commenced. (in Rs.). the reporting |/Ongoing.
reporting| Financial
Financial| Year. (in
Year (in Rs.)
Rs).
1 - |Livelihood| 2020-21 | 3years [10,57,32,719[78,00,000| 78,00,000 | Ongoing
Support
Plan
2
3
Total

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created

or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: Not Applicable
(asset-wise details).

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.



(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is

registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and
location of the capital asset).

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as
per section 135(5):

The Corporate Social Responsibilty (CSR) amount could not be spent during the financial year on the CSR
Project i.e. Livelihood Support Plan (LSP) which comes under paragraph (i) and (ii) of Schedule VII. The
LSP includes implementation of a range of livelihood skills training which promote education, including
special education and employment enhancing vocation skills especially among children, women, elderly
and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement and will eventually help in eradicating hunger,
poverty and malnutrition in 76 villages situated along Etawah-Chakeri road corridor and come within
Kanpur Dehat and Aureiya Districts of Uttar Pradesh. The implementation required the approval of the
LSP from International Finance Corporation (IFC) and their comments on LSP Report was received at the
end of financial year. Hence only a short time was available to incorporate these comments and initiate
implementation process. However, preparatory tasks such as identification of implementation agency
was completed and MoU was signed.

Sd/- Sd/-
(Chairman CSR Committee) (Director)




S JINDAL & ASSOCIATES

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Form MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report

{Pursuant to section. 204{1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED: 31° MARCH, 2022

To,

The Members of,

Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Limited,
CIN-U45400DL2010PLC203649

OSE Commercial Block, Hotel Aloft, Assets 5B,
Aerocity, Hospitality District, 1G] Airport,

New Delhi- 110 037

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 (hereinafter referred to as “the audit period”)
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject
to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and cther records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 according to the
provisions of:

{i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations-and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment
(not applicable to the company during the audit period).

(iv) The Securities Contracts {(Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’} and the rules made thereunder;

Office at:- B-4/47A, Phase-ll, Ashok Vihar, Delhi - 110052
Ph: 01123526495, Email: sjindalandassociates@gmail.com




(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 {‘SEBI Act’) were applicable to the Company under the financial
year under report;-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of india {Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015; '

¢. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 ({‘SEBI Act’) were not applicable to the Company under the financial year
under report;-

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; _

ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; '

iii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014.

iv. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; and

v The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securltles) Regulations, 1998

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts)
Regulations, 2014(not applicable to the company during the audit period)

(vi) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:

(a) National Highways Authority of india Act 1988 and the rules/reguIatlons/gwdelmes
made thereunder

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
{ii} Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange(s)

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted as per the applicable provisions of
the Companies-Act, 2013. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took
place durmg the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the
Act.




Further the compaositions of committees i.e. Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee were as per the appllcabFe
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

‘Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance or necessary consent for shorter
notice have been obtained from directors, as the case may be, and a system exists for seeking
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda |tems hefore the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the secretarial standards, the minutes of the meetings were duly recorded and signed by
the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been
recorded.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines,

We further report that during the audit period, there were no events/actions having a major
bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, etc.

For S ]indal & Associates

<

Place: New Delhi Proprietor

Date: 23/05/2022 M. No.: F10398, C.P. No.:8879
UDIN: F010398D000366413
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors of Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Limited
Report on the Audit of Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements of M/s Oriental Nagpur Betul
Highway Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022,
the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and relevant notes to the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at 31 March 2022, and profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS Standalone
Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Sl Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response to Key Audit
No. Matters

1. | Determination  of  Unwinding | We assessed the Company’s process for
Interest Income on Annuity from | the determining the Unwinding Interest
NHAI and the balance recoverable | Income on Annuity from NHAI andAtsqifs -
as at the reporting date receivable, which involved testing of the

T _' Read, Ofice: 3/15, ASAT ALT ROAD, NEW DELTHI-110002
Corp Office: 4/1 Asal Ali Road, 3 Flaor, Delite Cinema Building, Delhi-110002. Tel: +91.11-41403938, 23277677, 232522125
Converted from K G Somani & Co (Partnership firm) w.e.f. 24" June 2021
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As at 31 March 2022, the company has
recorded an Interest Income on
Annuity from NHAI amounting to
Rs. 4,113.59 Millions and a total
receivable of Rs. 28,319.55 Millions
from NHAI over the balance
concession period i.e. till FY 2031-21.

The value of Interest Income on
Annuity from NHAI (Revenue from
Operations) and Annuity Receivable
(Other Financial Assets — Current &
Non-Current) are considered to be a
key audit matter as these amounts
represent a significant portion of the
total income and total assets of the
company, respectively, included in the
Ind AS Standalone  Financial
Statements, couples with the use of
significant management judgement /
estimates and use of management’s
experts in determining the fair values,
on the basis described above.

design and operating effectiveness of the
internal controls and substantive testing
procedures as described below:

a) Assessed the management significant
judgements / estimates used in
evaluation of inputs for the purpose
of determination of such income in
accordance with Ind AS 115 and
determination of the financial asset as
recoverable in accordance with Ind
AS 109, We carried out a
combination of procedures involving
enquiry and observation, and
inspection of evidence in respect of
operations of these controls.

b) We assessed the process of
preparation and amendments of the
discounted cash flow model for
determination of unwinding interest
income from NHAI and the balance
recoverable over the remaining

concession period.

Performed analytical procedures by
comparing assumptions and fair
values on year-on-year basis and
obtained reasons for the variances,
wherever identified.

Determination of Interest Expense
on Borrowings as Non-Convertible
Debentures and the liability against
the Non-Convertible Debentures as
at the reporting date

As at 31 March 2022, the Company has
recorded an Interest Expense on Non-
Convertible Debentures aggregating to
Rs. 469.48 Millions and a total liability
of Rs. 19,140.64 Millions against the

We assessed the Company’s process for
the determining the Interest Expense on
Non-Convertible Debentures and the
liability of Non-Convertible Debentures,
which involved testing of the design and
operating effectiveness of the internal
controls and  substantive  testing
procedures as described below:

a) Assessed the management significant
judgements / estimates used in
evaluation of inputs for the purpose

[n

Repd. Office: 3715, ASAF AL ROAD, NEW DELHI-110002 -

Converted from K G Somani & Co (Partnership firm) w.e.f. 24" June 2021

Corp Office: 4/1 Asal Ali Road, 3" Floor, Delite Cinema Building, Delhi-110002, Tel: +91-11-41403938, 23277677, 23252225



www.kgsomani.com
office@kgsomani.com
LLP Identification No. AAX-5330

K G Somani & Co LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

outstanding Non-Convertible
Debentures, payable by FY 2029-30.

The determination of fair value of
interest expense on Non-Convertible
Debentures  requires  significant
management judgement / estimates
such as amortization of processing fee,
preparation of discounted cash flow

of determination of such expense and
financial liability as payable in
accordance with Ind AS 109. We
carricd out a combination of
procedures involving enquiry and
observation, and inspection of
evidence in respect of operations of
these controls.

model for determination of interest |b) We assessed the process of

expense and outstanding liability at the preparation and amendments of the

reporting date etc. discounted cash flow model for
determination of interest expense on

The value of interest expense on Non- Non-Convertible Debentures and the

Convertible Debentures (Finance Cost}) balance payable over the remaining

and Outstanding Debentures period till FY 2029-30.

(Borrowings — Current & Non-

Current) are considered to be a key ¢) Performed analytical procedures by

audit matter as these amounts represent
a significant portion of the total
expenses and total liabilities of the
company, respectively, included in the
Ind AS  Standalone  Financial
Statements, couples with the use of
significant management judgement /
estimates and use of management’s
experts in determining the fair values,
on the basis described above.

comparing assumptions and fair
values on year-on-year basis and
obtained reasons for the variances,
wherever identified.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report but does not include
the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon which we obtained prior to
the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusive thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Repd. OfMice: 3715, ASAF ALTROAD, NEW DELITI-T10002 v
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When we read this other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstaternent
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charges with governance and
review the steps taken by the management to communicate to those in receipt of the other
information, if previously issued, to inform them of the revision.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS
Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporting framework.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Standalone
Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS

Standalone Financial Statements.

_ Read. Office: 3/15, ASAT ALTROAD, NEW DELII-110002
Corp Office: 4/1 Asaf Ali Road. 3* Floor, Delite Cinema Building, Delhi-110002. Tel: +91-11-41403938. 23277677, 23252275
Converted from K G Somani & Co (Partnership firm} w.e.f. 24" June 2021



KG Somani & CO LLP wwi.kgsomani.com

office@kgsomani.cc
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP Identification i’io. AAx-gs’;l('h

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Standalone
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditot’s report to the
related disclosures in the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS Standalone
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS Standalone
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal contro! that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in

. — Regd Omice: 3/13, ASAF ALTROAD, NEW DELHI-T10002 ;
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extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the

Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified

in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 1o the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements comply with
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31 March 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”,

g) With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us by the
management, the Company has not accrued or paid any managerial remuneration
during the year under audit.

h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any impact of any pending litigations which would
impact its financial position in its Ind AS financial statements;

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii)There are no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) (i) the management of the Company has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds
have been advances or loaned or invested (either from the borrowed funds or share

] |
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premium or any other sources or any kinds of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(it) the management of the Company has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds
have been received by the Company in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, that Company had
recorded in writing or otherwise, the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
and

(iii) Based on such audit procedures that the auditor has considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to the notice that has
occutred them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
contain any material mis-statement.

v} The Company has declared a dividend of Rs, 1,621.28 Millions during the year and
the same is in compliance with section 123 of the Act.

K G Somani & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 006591N / N500377

aani & £

.'_ o
1D

- (1 ttow Detni 3
Karan Chadha \ - 2
Partner

M. No.: 522201

UDIN: 22522201 AIMGIX5776
Place: New Delhi

Date: 24 May 2022

Regd. Olhce: 3/15, ASAF ALI ROAD, NEW DLELHI-1 10002
Corp Office: 4/1 Asaf Ali Road, 3 Floor, Delite Cinema Building, Delhi-110002. Tel: +91-11-41403938, 23277677, 23252225
Converted from K G Somani & Co (Partnership firm) w.e.f. 24™ June 2021



K G Somani & Co LLP offlce(@kgeomant com

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP Identification No. AAX-5330

“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Limited

Referred to in Para 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements’ of ous
report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March
2022;

1) (@ (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;

(B) The Company does not have intangible assets during the financial year under
audit and therefore reporting under this clause is not applicable;

)] The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
management in a phased manner, designed to cover all the items over reasonable
intervals, and no material discrepancies between the books of account and the
physical Property, Plant and Equipment have been noticed;

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the
company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the company
and there is no dispute in regards with the same, therefore reporting under this
clause does not arise;

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant & Equipment including Right
to Use Assets) or intangible assets or both during the year, therefore reporting
under this clause does not arise;

(e) As per the information and explanations provided to us by the management, no
proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45
of 1988) and rules made thereunder, therefore reporting under this clause does

not arise;
2y (a) The Company does not have inventories, therefore reporting under this clause is
not applicable;
(b) During any point of time of the year, the company has not been sanctioned

working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets, therefore, reporting
under this clause does not arise;

3) During the year the company has not made investments in, provided any
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties, therefore, reporting under this clause does not arise.

However, the company has granted interest free loan(s) to the related parties,
recoverable in FY 2028-29, in previous years and the recoverable balances
against those loans are appearing in the books of account as at the reporting date;

4) The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 of the Companies
Act, 2013. However, by the virtue of sub-section 11 of Section 186, the
applicability of Section 186 does not fall upon the company;
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5) During the year, the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts deemed
to be deposits u/s 73 and 74 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. Therefore, reporting under this clause
does not arise;

6) The Company is maintaining the Cost Records as specified by the Central
Government u/s 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013. However, we are neither
required to carry out, nor have carried out any detailed examination of such
accounts and records;

7 (@ The company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities;

{b) No statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above, have been deposited on
account of any dispute. Therefore, reporting under this clause does not arise;

8 There are no transactions not recorded in the books of account that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Therefore, reporting under this clause is
not applicable;

N (@ The Company is regular in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thercon to its lender and has not defaulted in any such
payments. Therefore, reporting under this clause does not arise;

(b) As per the information and explanations provided to us by the management, the
Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender;

(©) The Company does not have any term loans during the year or as at the reporting
date. Therefore, reporting under this clause is not applicable;

(d) The Company has not raised any funds on short-term basis during the year.
Therefore, reporting under this clause does not arise;

() The Company has not received any funds from any entity or person on account
of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures,

However, a sum of Rs. 58,357 Lakhs has been received during the year from
National Highway Authorities of India against a claim filed by the company on
behalf of Oriental Structural Engineers Private Limited, which is a vendor and a
related party of the Company. The said amount has been remitted to Oriental
Structural Engineers Private Limited during the year. For details refer Note No.
45 of the enclosed financial statements;

() The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Therefore,
reporting under this clause does not arise;

10y (a) The Company has not raised any funds by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Therefore, reporting
under this clause is not applicable;
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N\, L(Hp”[hu 411 Asaf Ali Road, 3" Floot Dc]ltcl memi Building, Delhi-110002 Tel: +91- ll—4|403938 23277677, 23252225
Converted from K G Somani & Co (Partnership firm) w.c.f. 24™ June 2021



K G Somani & Co LLP officetskgsomantcom

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP Identification No. AAX-5330

{b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during
the year. Therefore, reporting under this clause is not applicable;

My (@ As per the information and explanation provided by the management of the
company, no fraud by the company or fraud on the company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been
filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government;

(c) We have considered whistle-blower complaints if any, received during the year
by the Company. However, no such complaints have brought to our notice by the
management of the Company. Therefore, reporting under this clause does not

arise;

12) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under this clause 12
(a), (b) and (c) is not applicable;

13) As per the information and explanations provided to us by the management of the
Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 of Companies Act where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the financial statements, etc., as required by the applicable
accounting standards;

14y  (a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business;

)] The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have not been
considered by the Statutory Auditors as the Internal Audit is under process and
the draft reports are yet to be released by the Internal Auditors to the management
of the Company;

15) As per the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has not entered any non-cash transactions with the directors cr persons
connected with him, therefore the provisions of section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not attracted and hence, reporting under this clause does not arise;

16) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934, therefore reporting under this clause is not applicable;

(b The Company is not an NBFC and has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial
or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR)
from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
therefore reporting under this clause does not arise;

©) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India, therefore, reporting under this
clause is not applicable;

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group;
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17 The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and the
immediate preceding financial year, therefore, reporting under this clause does
not arise;

18) There has been no resignation of the Statutory Auditors of the Company during
the year,

19) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of

financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, the our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date;

20) (a) During the year, the Company is not required to transferred any unspent amount
to any Funds specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013;

(b) During the year, the Company has transferred remaining unspent amount of Rs.
54.79 Millions (Previous year Rs, 43.01 Millions) to a separate Bank Account in
compliance of the provisions of Section 135 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013;

21) This report is in relation to the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements. This
clause (21} is for consolidated financial statements hence, it is not applicable.

K G Somani & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 006591N / N500377
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Orinetal Nagpur Betul Highway Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Oriental Nagpur Betul
Highway Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Respousibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all

material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For K G Somani & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 006591N / N500377
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Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Lid,
Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2022
(ANl amount in millions unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes

I. ASSETS

1) Non-current assets
a) Property. Plant and Equipment 2

Investment Property and Goodwill
b} Financial Assets
i) I[mvestments
ii) Trade receivables
iil) Loans
iv) Other financial asset
¢) Defetred tax Assets (Net)
d) Nou-current tax assets (net}
{2) Current assets
a) Inventories
b) Financial Assets
i) Tovestments 7
ii) Trade receivables 8
iii) Cash and cash equivalents 9
vl Loans 10
vi) Other financial asset 11
¢ ) Other current asssts 12
TOTAL ASSETS

1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
a} Equity Share capital 13
b}  Other Equity 14
LIABILITIES
{11 Non-current liabilities
a)  Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 15
ity Lease Liabilities
iii) Trade payables
iv) Other financial ligbilities 16
by Deferred tax fiabilities (Met) 5
¢y Other Mon current liabilities

{2y Current tiabilities
a) Financial Liabilities

A I ]

{i) Bormowings 17
ii) Lease Liabilities
(ifi Trade payables 18

{A) Total out standing dues of micro enterprises and
smal} enterprises

{3) Tota) ont standing dues of creditors otber than
micro enterprises and small enterprises

(iv} Cther financial liabilities . 1¢
by Other current liabilities 20
¢t Provisigns
d) Current Tax Liability (net} 21
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integrat part of these 350

standalone financial statements
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For KG SOMANI & CO LLF

{Formerly known as K G Somani & Co.)
Chartered Accovntants
Firm Registration No:- 006591 IN/NS00377

Hdrun Chadha K
Partner NN
wship Noi- SIR20F—
Membership No: ""‘-‘N'ODD‘-I
Dute:- 24 May 2621 -

Place~ BDelhi

upive 1252220\ AT MATA51\6

(Authorised Nignutory) {Authorised

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 Mar 2021

47 49 3763

63,78 -
26,104 .38 24,634.73
- 101.05
382.87 54.60
1,507.15 3.098.09
9.30 11.50
835.19 789.51
3.642.70 3,793.60
5.567.00 534146
2514 66.97
18,189.50 37.949.54
181.33 18135
12,172.23 12,126.66
21,171.39 23.244.16

1,548.34 :

22321 -
207278 1,943, 10
49 98 53.69
T63.40 35543
4.82 44 .75
38,189.50 37.949,14

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Nik%

IMrector
1N (TR35556

(!

jgnatory)

t;(:l‘ Sharma

Director
DIN: 02483364

Vikas Mokan

Chiel Finnncial Officer
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S
Prabhijot Singh

Company Scerebiry
M. No. : ACS 4557



Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Ltd.

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31 March 2022

(Al amount in millions unless otherwise stated)

Notes

INCOME

Reventue From Operations 22
Other Income 23
Total Income

EXPENSES

Operating Expenses 24
Finance Costs 25
Depreciation and ameortization expenses 26
Other Expenses 27
Total Expenses,

Profit before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional [tems

Profit before tax

Tax expense/Credit: 28
Current Tax

MAT Credit Curment period

Current Tax earlier period

MAT Credit Earlier period

Deferred Tax - earlier period

Deferred Tax

Profit for the period

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income (Net of tax)

A Items thac will be reclassified to profit or loss

B liems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Total Comprehensive Income for the period

Earniungs per equity share: 29
(1) Basic

(2) Diluted

Significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of

these standalone financial statements 2-50

1 April 2021 to

1 Apr 2020 to

31 March 2022 31 Mar 2021
11,845.68 4,751.86
757.57 808.19
12,603.25 5,560.05
7.712.10 423 .45
2,358.25 2.538.25
10.14 12.47
93.86 99,87
. l(}!l 74.34 3!074.03
242891 2,486.02
2,428.91 2,436.02
432,82 49228

(379.20) (416.40)

- (1.33)

(12.65) -

733.01 250.60

1,649.92 2,160.87
1,649.92 2,160.87

1,649.92 2,160.87
9).98 119.16
90.98 119.16

This is the Statement of Prefit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For KG SOMANI & CO LLP
(Formerly known as K G Somani & Ce.)
Chartered Accountants

amhl & AN

S

Partuer O
Membership No:- 5222007000
Date:- 24 May 2022

P

LATEATGREE § o

Conne 22522200 ATMGIXS5 3L

r-..l‘.‘i

ol
NikhilL.Pfiingra

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

\

\a\gV

-

Ranveer Sharma

Director Diirector
DIN: 07835556 DIN: 02483364
¥ikas Mahan

Chict Financiaf Officer

Q.

*rabhjot Singh
Campany Secreiary
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Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Lid.

Stavement of Changes In Equity for the period ended March 31, 2022

(Al amount 0 millions unless otberwise stated)

a. Equity share capital

1) As st March 31, 2022
[ Changee in Equity

ihare capital due to d bal. Changes in equity
Balance at Macch 31, 2021 prior Period ervore  |at March 31 2020 | during the year Bal at March 31,2022

18135 - 181.3%

1) As ar March 31, 2021

Changes in Equity

nhare capital due to  |R d bal Changes in equity
Balance st March 31, 2020 prior Pediod errors |at March 31 2020 |during the year Balance at March 31,2024

181.3% - - 181.35
b. Other equity
Particulars Resgrves and Surplus
Rede i
_ Deb " RE::::E on _‘ec;;?;on Dieemed Dstribution Tonal
Retained camings | Security Premnium . v Contribution and of Bsquhny dll'o l"ello:w
Distribution e
g.:noe at the #nd of the seporting year ended March 31, 532464 344366 2 36836 1 12,176.66
“Total hensive: i For the period ended Macch 31,
2;;32 comprehentive moame or the pened cn Arc. 168092 164092
Addinon durng the year Decmed Distribution of Hquity o
Felesn Subsidiaries GHE (018 164
LDovidend Dhstobured (1,621 28} - (1,621.2H)
Less ;- [ransfer to debeoture redemption teserve {27 - 201971 .
Add :- Transfer fram debenure sedemption rescrve 194.57 - (196,37 .
I:;zlzmoe at the end of the reporting year ended March 31, 517,26 3443.66 1,923.14 358,36 00.18) 728
Particulars Reserves aud Surplus
Beserve on Redemplion o
S cecurite Premiom| D€ demption | of Deemed Capital | (emed Disinbution “Total
= ° reserre Comuribution and ST::le:D Aol
Distribution pREiance

:;;nac at the end of the reporting year ended March 31, 1,753.92 3,445.66 5,815.17 358.56 J L3710
Tutal connprehensive income foc the petiod ended Maceh 31,
Toulcomp pe ‘ 2,160.57 2,160.87
Addifion during the year eemed Dhetobanen of Lgury to
Fellow Subsuiarics i
aviclend Distribured (1,405.30y (1.405.31)
Transfer o retained carmngs §,R18.17 (5,815.17) il
I:;leanoe ai the end of the repening year ended Muarch 31, 8,264 ji 3858.36 | 12,126.66|

Tle accompanying notes #re an integral pant of thege standalone financial
d ta in our reporl of even dale

‘Thia is che St of change in Equity ref:

For KG SOMANI & CO LLP

(Formecly known as K G Somani & Co)—
Chartered Accountanis _.-"/'.-1 nl & ( y
Firm Regisiration No:- nD}ﬁs}il\N{imeﬂ? .

Partner \
Membership No:- 8222001 %

Date:- 2 May 2022 e £
Place:- Dethi 4

UDIN- 2 2622201 ATMGT 5316

b

Prateek Mantni
{Authoriced Signatory)

L Far and on behalf of the beard of directors
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Sharad kumar Singh Wilkchil eer Sharma
Miel Executive Officer  Director Diirector
DIN: 07835556 DIN: 02483344

ﬁ.a;!: Prabbjot Singh ilcas Mohan

sed Signatory)  Comp S Chief Fi ial Officer
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Qrientat Nagpur Betul Highway Lid-
Staternent of Cash Flows Statement for the period ended 31 Mareh, 2022
(All amount in millions uniess otherwise stated)

1 April 2021 to 1 Apr 2020 to

Parficulars n hl;an:h 2022 n II)\!'lar 2021
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Profit before exceptlonat itemns and tax as per statement of profit and loss. 242891 2.486.02
Adjus .
Depreciation 19.14 12.47
Finance incoma on Interest Free Loan 4.97) -
Interest on ncome {124.58) (79.91)
Interest ncome - interest bearing RPT loan {509.98) (509.98)
{Gain) on fair valuation of Mutual funds {30.95) (69.36)
Profit on redemption of Mutnal fund {8437 (147.06)
Maodification Gain {1,548.34) .
[nterzst on Debentures 1,755.01 193207
Interest on Trust Loan 600.68 603.44
Operating Profit before working Capital Changes 2,491.55 4,228.68

Adjustment for changes in :
{Decrease)Increase in Trade payables ) (3.7} (18.27
{Decrease)/Increase in Other Financial Liabilities . 1.959.62 50.81

{Decrease) Increase in Qther current liabilities (39.93} {84.50)
(Increase)! Decrease in Other current assets/other financial assels 11392 69.12
(Increase)/ Decrease in Joans 2191 4.04)
(Increase)/ Decrease in annuity receivable {(Note |1 + Note 4) 1, 470,76 1,288.70
{Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivable 220 (0.32)
Net Cash from Operating Activities before Income Tax 6,016.32 5.529.89
Direct taxes paid {net of refund) (783.000 (493.06)
Net cash Mows generaied from operating activities after exceptional items £.233,33 5,036.83
B. H FLOW FROM INVESTI ACTIVITIES :
1ofow
Sale of current investments 2,108.81 14,059.02
[nvestment income - Profit on redempticn of Mutual fund 34,37 147.06
[nvestment income from related party 509,98 472.60
Received from FDR Maturity and oihers 5213.89 2,950.46
FDR incoms 6.49 19.35
Quiflow
Purchase of current [nvesiments {6,485.92) (12,310.3%)
Investment in FDR (6,702.89) {3.972.16)
Net cash used in Investing activities 733.73 1,356.96
C. LW FROM FINA G ACTIVITIES (Refer Note 2 below):
Inflow
Short term loan repaid by Fellow subsidian{ONBCPL) - 360.00
Outflow
Repayment of Non Convertible Debentures {L965.70) (2.063.600
Dividend Paid {1.621.28) (1,40531)
Interest Paid on Debentures (1,732.86) (1,899.55)
Interest Paid on Infra Trust Loan {601.54) (600.37)
Net cash used in inancing activities (5,921.38) (5,608.83)
Net Chamges in Cash and Cash equivalents during the period 45.68 784,95
Cash and Cash equivalents al the beginning of the period 789.51 4.55
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the peried 835.19 789.51
Net Increasef (Decrease) 45 68 784.95
Motes:-

1. The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect methad as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind As 7} statement of cash flow.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these st
This is the Cash Flow referred to in our report of even date
For KG SOMANI & CO LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors
(Formerly known as K G Somani & Co.)
Chartered Accountants
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Oriental Nagpur Bewl Highway Ltd.
LAY amanni in willions ankit olherwive siated)
Calcularion of the Net Distributable Cash Flows :

5. No. Description From 01.4.2021 To 31.03.2022 | From 01.04.202¢ To
31.03.2021
1
1 Profit after tax as per Statement of profit and loss/income and cxpenditure (standalone) €3] 1,649 92 216087
2 Add: Depreceation and amortization as per statement of profit and loss/income and expenditure 1014 12.47
3 Add: Any amount ceceived from tolls or annuitics not cecognized as income for the purposes of working out the 1,470.7¢ 1,288.70
profit after max
4 Less: ny amount payable to concession granting authority as revenue share or premium 1 such amount has not - =
already been considered for the determination of profit after tas
5 Add/Less: Decrease/ (increase) m working capital 2,054 12,50
[ Add :Interest on loans (i any) from Trust GOLGE 0344
7 Add: Amount invested by the Trust in the Project Entity for service of debt or interest, through mternal accruals . .
to the extent allowed under the SEBT [nvl'T Regulations.
8 Less: dny amount o be kept aside for DSRA, MMRA or any other reserve requirements s required by lenders; (43.35) =
9 Add: Proceeds from 360.00
+ sale of, fixed assets {inchuding investments)
* repayment of any loans provided to any othet patty, to the extent the same arc not alrcady comsidered
calculation of Profit After Tax;
n |Add: amount received from setlement of clam from NHAI or from any engineering, prexcurement ancd E
consteuchion contractors to the extent not already considered in profit after tax
11 Add: amount released from DSRA/MMRA or any ather teserve in liew of providing bank guarantee 132.90
12 Add: Cash released from DSILY MMRA or any other cesecve in keu of providing BO
13 Add/less: Any other item of non-cash expense / non-cash income (et of actual cash flows for these items) {1,684.20) (310.6R)
14 Any other income/expense not considered for the caleulation of profit after tax, if decmesl necessary by the
Investment Manager, aftet the Tnv1T Closing Date.
15 Tass: Repayment of external debt (principal) / redeemable preference shares / debentutes, efe., if deemed {1,965.70) (2163.6(0
necessary by the lovestment Manager, net of any debt raised by cefinancing of exigting debt or/and any new debt
rased
16 J.ess: Paymenl kywacd
+ Capital lixpenditure wneurred on the progects (G any) including payment to coatractors i thear claims
« payment of claims (oe rerention of any amouats relating 10 such claims) velated to Spmsacs under the Sale and
‘I'ansfor Agreement {only to the extent such amounts ace vot aleeady covered in the Capital Fxpenditure rtem
menuoned above)).
17 Leas: Any provision or wserve deemed necessacy by the IM Board for expeases which may be due in the gext
quarter but foc which there may not be commensurate amounts avarlable by the date such expenses become due
provided such cxpenses are aleeady included as a part of annual budget approved in accordance with the Trust
Deed,
18 Add/(ess): Any other adjustment ta be undertaken by the 1M Board to ensure that there i no double counting (248.75) (165,410
of the same item for the above calculations { Surplus available)
‘Total Adjustments (B) 326.48 (262,56)
Dividend and interest payment out of opening cash reserves as at 24 June 2019 45,40
Net Distributable Cash Flows (C)=(A+B) 1,976.40 1,943.70

For KG SOMANI & CO LLP

(Formerly kitown as K G Somani & Co.}
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No:- 006591 ny%’lGS??

ani ¢

artner LN 7oL
Membership Nn:- Sziiﬂ'[ i) 3'3 " ,
Date:- 24 May 2022 e
Place:- Delhi
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R

Procteek STamiri
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For and ¢n behalf of the board of directors

{Lathorded Sipgnutory)

Ranveer Sharma
Director
DIN: 02483364

Vikas Mohan
Chief Financial Otficer

A rabhjot Stagh
Conipany Scerétary
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Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Led.
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at 31 March 2022
(All amount in millions unless otherwise stated)

Note 2:- Property, Plant and Equipment

F;e::ld Computers  Plant & Equipments Motor Vehicle F';:;:::::s& Total
Gross Carrying Amount
Balance as at 31 March 2020 0.09 0.00 175.49 10.11 0.75 186.45
Additions - - - . = =
Less: Disposals - E & - = .
Balance as at 31 March 2021 0.09 0.00 175.49 10.11 0.75 186.45
Additions - - - - - 5
Less: Disposals - - - - . .
Balance as at 30 June 2021 0.09 0.00 175.49 10:11 0.75 186.45
Additions ' . o - .
Less: Disposals - - - - - 2
Balance as at 30 Sep 2021 0.09 0.00 175.49 10.11 0.75 186.45
Additions : - - - .
Less: Disposals . - - - - ;
Balance as at 31 Dec 2021 0.09 0.00 175.49 10.11 0.75 156.45
Additons 2 . 2 .
Less: Disposals S . - - 5 .
Balance as at 31 March 2022 0.09 0.00 175.49 10.11 0.75 186.45
Accumulated Depreciation & Amortization
Balance as at 31 March 2020 - 0.00 107.32 8.41 0.61 116.35
Charge for the Pertod - - 1193 0.50 0.04 12.47
Less: Disposals - - ] - - :
Balance as at 31 March 2021 - 0.00 119.26 8.91 0.65 128.82
Charge for the Period - - 2.44 0.09 0.01 2.53
Less: Disposals - . o - -
Balance as at 30 June 2021 0.00 121.69 8.99 0.66 131.35
Charge for the Period 246 0.09 0.01 256
Less: Disposals - - = - - <
Balance as at 30 Sep 2021 Q.00 124.15 9.08 0.67 133.90
Chatge for the Petiod - - 2.46 0.09 0.01 256
Less: Disposals - - - - - g
Balance as at 31 Dec 2021 - 0.00 126.62 9.16 0.67 136.46
Charge for the Period = - 241 0.08 0.01 2.50
Less: Disposals - - - = - -
Balance as at 31 Mar 2022 - 0.00 129.02 9.25 0.68 138.96
Net Carrying Amount
Balance as at 31 March 2021 0.09 - 56.24 1.20 0.10 57.63
Balance as at 30 June 2021 0.09 - 53.80 112 0.10 55.10
Balance as at 30 Sep 2021 0.09 - 51.34 1.03 0.09 52.54
Balance as at 31 Dec 2021 0.09 - 48.88 0.94 0.08 49.99
Balance as at 31 March 2022 0.09 - 46.47 0.86 0.07 47.49

# Tireehold land held by company as per requirement of NHAI hence the same has not been treated as Investment property as per Ind AS 40.

¢ The title deeds of all the immovable propesties are held in the name of the company.
The company has not revalued any of its property, Plunt and Equipraent and mtangible assets till dare
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Ovriental Nagpur Betul Highway Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at 31 March 2022

{All amount in millions unless otherwise stated)
As At

31 March 2022

Note 3:- Non Current Loans (at amortized cost)

Loans and Advances
To related parties
Loans Considered Good - Secured

As At
31 March 2021

Loans Considered Good - Unsecured 63.78
Loans which have significant increase in Credit Risk. -
Loans - Credit Impaired -

63.78
Note:-

(i) Refet note 34- Fair value disclosures for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial liabilities measured at amortized cost,

(i) Refer note 35- Financial Risk Management of assessment of expected credit losses.

Note 4:- Other Non Current financial assets

Unsecured- considered good

Annuity receivable 22,752.55 22,976.76

Deemed Investemnt in fellow subsidiary 87.12 -

Security Deposit 7.89 7.74

FDR with maturity more than 12 months* 3,257.32 1,650.23
26,104.88 24,634.73

*The Fixed Deposits agreegating to Rs.3257.06 millions (Rs 1650.23 previous year) held by the company has been classified
vnder the category of Other Non-Current Financial Assets irrespective of the date of maturity, since the same is under the lien with

Axis Trustee (i.e. MMR, DSRA & DRR) and is subject to auto-renewal on the date of maturity.
Note:
{i) Movement in receivables under service concession arrangements:

Opening balance 22,976.76 24,265.19
Add: .Unwmdmg Interest Income on Annuity from National Highway Authority 4.133.59 432572
of India {'NHAI')

Less: Transfer of receivables from non-current other financial assets to current (4,357.80) (5,614.14)
other financial assets

Closing balance 22.752.55 22,976.76

Note:-

() Refer note 34- Faie value disclosures for disclosure of fair value in respeet of financial liabilities measured at amortized cost.

(i) Refer note 3$- Financial Risk Management of assessment of expected credit losses.

(i) Refur Note 37:- Other non curtent financial assets are hypothecated as sceutity with the Bank (s) against borrowings.

Note 5:- Deferred tax Assets/(Deferred tax Liabilities)
A, Deferred tax liabilities on account of -

Application of Service Concession Agreement {3.005.35) (2,278.01)
Adjustment of Upfront Fees on NCD {1277) (1277
Gain on Fair Valuation of Investment {10.82) -
B.Deferred tax assets on account of -

Interest Free Loan to Fellow Subsidiaries 21.91 -
Property, Plant & Equipment 233 2.19

Total (3,004.69) (2,288.58)

MAT Credit Entitlement
AY.20016-17 104,76 104.76
AY.2017-18 437.22 437,22
AY, 2018-19 368.79 368.79
ALY, 2010-20 527.02 527.02
ALY 202021 53544 53544
ALY 22122 420115 46,44

AN L2

Nt Detorred Tax Liabebries/Assets

Q9
. r'..';—",' y
Nole 9. Non-current s assels J'_-:‘l. T
ineaune 1ax Refundabie - net of Provision \'r | <1/
< j
\
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Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Litd.

Notes forming part of the financial statemeats as at 31 March 2022

{All amount in millions unless otherwise stated)

Note 7:- Current Investment
Investment in Mutual Funds {unquoted)

Unquoted- Axis Liquid Fund- Direct Growth Plan- 53,418,528 units (NAV

As At
31 March 2022

As At
31 March 2021

126,

2364.0819) 6.29 368

Unquoted- Axis UltraShort Term Fund- Direct Growth Plan- 15,98,783.941
o 19.

units {NAV 12.4680) 993 2,700.91
Unguoted- Axis Treasury Adavantage Fund- Direct Growth Plan- 2,52,292.431 653.44 39351
units (NAV 2590.0210) ’ )
Unquoted - Nippon India Low Duration Fund - Direct Growth - 2,17,432.614 689.00
units (NAV 3168.7867) ' )
Unquoted - Kotak Saving Fund - Direct Growth - 5,13,189.267 units (NAY

18.4% =

36.0302)

Unquoted - HDFC Ultra Short Term Fund - Direct Growth - 41253148.780 units i

(NAV 12.1783) ‘
Unquoted - TATA Treasury Advantage Fund - Direct Growth - 166462,95 units "

(NAV 3187.339) g
Unquoted - DSP Ulira Short Term Fund - Direct Growth - 0 units (NAV 0) - -
Ungquoted - ABSL Saving Fund - Direct Growth - 1147901.107 units (NAV )

436.2157) )
Unquoted - ABSL Low Duration Fund - Direct Growth -~ 956643.247 units }

(NAV 566.1319) )
Unquoted - Invesco India Treasury Advantage Fund - Direct Growth - )

173685.532 units (NAV 3115.268) '
Unquoted - UTT Liguid Cash Plan - Direct Growth - 4845.566 units (NAV _

3426.1918) i

1,507.15 3,098.09

Aggregate Amount of unquoted Investments & Market value thereof. 1,507.18 3,098.00
Note:-

() Refer note 34- Fair value disclosures for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial labilitics measured at amortized cost.

(i) Refer note 33- Financial Risk Management of assessment of expected credit losses.

{iti) Refer Note 37:- Cutreat Investments are hypothecated as security with the Bank (s) against borrowings.

Note 8:- Trade receivables
Trade Receivables 9.30 11.50
Allowance for doubtful trade receivables - &
Total Receivables 2.30 11.50
Sub Classified as:-

Trade Receivables Considered good-gecured - -
Trade Receivables Considered good-Unsecured ©.30 11.50
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - .
Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired - -
Less:- Allowances for doubtful Trade Receivables - =

Ageing schedule of trade receivables
As ac 31 March 2022 Ourstanding from the due dare of pavment Tatal

Not due Less thans | a monchs -1 1-2 years 23 vears More than 3
months year years
b R J‘: " 3:.:;
[osadesed 2 ' [ | * o
i | | | \2\
| | &
s | ] L )
trT;i \-—— I Crutsnainding froen 1ue due dete af ;3;-.\';1::-:_-:- Tenai
Nt dys Less tiann st -4 I-2years 25 wsiis
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Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Lid.
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at 31 March 2022

{All amount in millions unless otherwise stated)
As At As At

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

T uelispsickeet tracle vecerrables -
cousktered doubtful

Dispured trade ceceivahles -
constdered good

Dhsputad tonde ceceivalsles -
considepsd doubefd

Note:-
(D) Refer note 34- Fair value disclosures for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial liabilities measured at amortized cost.

(i) Refer note 35- Financial Risk Management of assessment of expected credit losses.

Note 9:- Cash and Cash Equivalent
Balances with Banks:

Current Accounts 44.53 376.26
Deposits Account - FDR 790.67 413.24
835.19 789.51
Naote:-

() Refer note 34- Financial Risk Management of asscssment of expected credir losses.

(i) Refer Note 37:- Current Investments are hypothecated as security with the Bank (s) against borrowings.

(iii} Other than as disclosed, there are no repatriation restrictions with respect to cash and cash equivalents as at the ead of the
reporting year and comparative years.

Note 10;- Loans

To related parties - Oriental Nagpur Byepass Construction Pvt. Ltd™* 3,642.70 3,642.70

Loans Censidered Good - Unsecured 2 150.90
3,642.70 3,793.60

* The Oriental Nagpur Betul Highways Ltd has provided loan carrying coupon interest @ 14% p.a.

Note:-

(i) Refer note 34- Tair value disclosures for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial liabilities measured at amortized cost.
(i) Refer note 35- Finaacial Risk Management of assessment of expected credit losses.

(iii) Refer Notc 37:- Cutrent Investments are hypothecated as security with the Bank (s) against botrrowings.

Note 11:- Other Current financial Asset (Unsecured, Considered good)
Annuity receivable 5,567.00 5,265.20

Other receivable -Related Party - 76,25
5,567.00 5,341.46
Note:
Movement in annuity receivable
Opening Balance 5,265.20 5,265.48
Add: Revenue from Operations & Maintenance of Road 211.66 201.58
Add: Revenue from construction of Toll Road - -
Add: Revenue from Major Maintenance of Road - =
Add:Modification Gain 1,548.34 z
Add: Transf.er of receivables from non-current other financial assets to current 4.357.80 5.614.14
other financial assets
Less: Tax deducted by NHAI on Annuity payments (116.32) (87.24)
Less: Annuity received from National Highway Authority of India (NHAI') (5,699.68) (5,728.76)
Closing Balance 5,567.00 5,265.20
Note 12:-Other current assets
Mobilizacion advance
To related parties (Oriental Structural Engineers Pvt. Ltd.) 393 43.79
To Others 1.32 1.32
Aelsttorfal aebeunen
arelsied e nental Straetusad fasghreas £ el i 340G
Salvmoes o
Fransd wapie o A
Daartanize Clan Hoceivable . A ani & | _
WCT/GST - recoverable 7 adjustable R EEI_"H\ , NedN 4,74 362
Levin: Provision For doubril advances S ~“‘f”i‘;‘ " e = -1.51
X/ \2\/ + Delhi ] 4] 2.4 66.97
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Ovriental Nagpur Betul Highway Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at 31 March 2022
{All amount in millions unless stherwise stated)

Note 13:- Equity Share Capitat
Authorized:
1,90,00,000 (31 March 2021 - 1,90,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid-up:
1,81,34,500 (31 March 2021- 1,81,34,500) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each

{a) Reconciliation of number of shares

Equity Shares

At the beginaing of the year

-In Numbers

- in Rupees

Issued during the period

-In Numbers

- in Rupees

Balance as a¢ the end of the period
-In Numbers

- in Rupees

(b)Rights, Preference and restrictions attached to Shares

As At
31 March 2022

As At
31 March 2021

190.00 190.00
181.35 181.35
181.35 181.35
18.13 18.13
181.35 181.35
18.13 1813
181.35 181.35

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Every member holding equity shares
therein shall have voting rights in proportion to his shares of the paid up equity share capital. The Company declares and pay

In event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of eguity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in propartion to the number of equity shares held by the

{c) Shares held by helding company and ultimate holding Company/ Trust

18134494 (March 31, 2021: 18134494) equity shares are held by Qriental
Infratrust.

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

Equity shares are held by Oriental Infratrust.
% of Holding

181.34

18.13

100%

181.34

18.13
100%

(€) No shares have been issued by the Company for consideration other than cash, during the period of five years immediately

preceding the year ended 31 March 2022,

Details of promoter shareholding

Name of pomoter As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Nutnber of | of total shares| % Change Numberof | % of total shares| %% Change
shares during the shares during the year
year
Qvienzal infratoust 1313 13040 ! 1325 18T i
.'.- ani &
[-".l’\'_’]f - _\.
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Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at 31 March 2022
(All amount in millions unless otherwise stated)

Note 14:- Other Equity

Surplus in the statement of profit and less
Balance as per lasi financial statements

WNet profit for the period

Less:- Dividend Distribution®

Less ;- Transfer to debenture redemption reserve
Add :- Investment in fellow subsidiary

Add :- Transfer from debenture redemption reserve
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Reserve on Redemption of Deemed Capital Contribution and Distribution
Amount Transfer from Deemed Capital Contribution
Amount Transfer from Deemed Capital Distribution

Security premium
Opening Balance
Closing Balance

Debenture vedemption reserve { to the extent amount available)
Opening Balance

Add : Transfer from retained earning

Less : Transfer to retained earning

Closing Balance

Deemed Distribution of Equity to Fellow Subsidiaries

Total

Nature and purpose of other reserves
Securities premium

Securities premium represents [
with the provisions of the Companies Act.
Debenture redemption reserve

As At
31 March 2022

As At
31 March 2021

8,324.64 (,753.92
1,649.92 2,160.87
(1,621.28) (1,405.31)
(2,119.71) -
87.12 :
196.57 5.815.17
6,517.26 8.324.64
951.71) (951.71)
1,310.07 1,310.07
358.36 35836
3,443.66 3,443.66
3,443.66 3,443.66
: 5,815.17
2,119.71 -
(196,57) (5.815.17)
 1,923.14 -
(70.18) ;
12.172.23 12,126.66

remiumn received on issue of shares, The share premium amount will be utilized in accordance

As per the amendment of section 2(52) of Companies Act, 2013 w.e.f 1st April 2021, and as per section 71 of Companies Act,
2012, the company is required to maintain the 10% Debenture Redemption Reserve of outstanding Debentures. Accordingly, the

company has created the Debenture Redemption reserve amounting of Rs.1,92,31,40,000/-,

Nete 15:- Non Current Borrowings
(i) Bonds/ Debentures

Debentures (Secured)

8.28% Non Convertible Debentures
£.78% Non Convertible Debentures
9.00% Non Convertible Debentures

Note:- Nature of Security & Terms of repayments for Debentures as per Annexure A.

(i} Loans from Related Parties

Loan from trust
Oriental InfraTrust*

* The Trust has provided loan carrying coupon interest @ 14% p.a.
Note:-

14,604.88 16,378.75
1.606.10 1,801.08
856.89 960.81
4,103.52 4,103.52
21,171.39 23.244.16

(i) Refer note 34- lair value disclosures for disclosure uf fair value in respect of financial liabilitics measured at amottized cost.
{iiy Refer note 35- linancial Risk Managemcot of assessment of expecred credit Josses.

Note 16:- Non Current Financial Liahilities
Dieferred Viabiling te Q51

/=)

Note 17 Curenr Borrowings (Unsecured RETOR

(i) Bonds/.Dehentures g;t,.-—— : -‘f/?.}
Debentures «Socured) /<) J’fﬁ\
fa o il o Tonvertible G m =

Eurrent Mgy - Mon Convertble Debentures !L&I[ NEW DELHI r?\
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Qriental Nagpur Betul Highway Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at 31 March 2022

(All amount in millions unless otherwise stated)

Note 18:- Trade payables

- Total out standing dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises {Refer Note

Below}
- Total out standing dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small

enterprises*

As At

31 March 2022

4998

As At
31 March 2021

53.69

Less:- Allowance for doubtful creditors

49.98

53.69

* includes amounts due to related parties
Others

46.36
3.63

5110
2.60

49.98

53.69

Ageing schedule of trade payables

As at 31 March 2022

Outstanding from the due date of payment

Total

Less than 1
year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Micro, small and medpzm

EterpLises

Others

4998

Duputed duss- MSME

Disputed dues- Others

As at 31 March 2021

Outstanding from the due date of payment

Total

Less than1 2-3 years

year

1-2 years

More than 3}
vears

ALese, small and mednum

exterpases

4

3634

Others

(%)

3.6%

Duspured dues- MSME

Dizouted does- Othecy

Note:-

{i) Refer note 35- linancial Risk Management of assessmeat of expected credie losses.
Note:-

DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

(“MSMED Act’). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows:

a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the period

b) Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the period
¢) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
MSMED Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier

beyond the appointed day during the period

d) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in taking
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)
but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006

&) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each

accounting period
f} The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the

sucueeding yoa wati] such duie whon Aot Jues aivve are aciueily puad

o the smait srprises, foe i marose ol disslowance of deductible

seelon 23 of the nsiil 204

.“\Il] Ili {1
A28 PRI favable W vendurs ns Aelied vader die “Micro, Small wnd Medium Enterpsie Tevits
/e Lmrqj\ available with the Compsny r{,bdrdmg the status of registration of sueh vendors under the smd A t. ;1 Aier the

A
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As At

31 March 2022

R

Development Act, 2006
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PN ]
LA

o from thein o roquests nade by the Company. $here are no overdue principal amounis /i cr- fr [y li fe \ } ';\
~el
sueh vendars ol the Balance Sheet date. There are o detays in payment made o u‘,h nlyg 1‘1!1 s O

i /

A
\5,} jring th > vi ar or for any carlicr years and accordingly there is no interest paid or outstanding interest in this regard m i ~.p el ol Py

o '.(

f?ooo\i



Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements a5 at 31 March 2022
(All amount in millions unless otherwise stated)

As At As At
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Note 19:- Other Current financial liabilities
Intetest accrued on debentures 435 4.80
Provision for Expenses - CSR 91719 50.81
Interest accrued on Trust Loan 298.97 299.82
Claim payable to OSE 364.29 E

765.40 355.43
Note:-

(i) Refer note 34- Fair value disclosures for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial liabilities measuted at amortized cost.
(i) Refer note 35- [inancial Risk Management of assessment of expected credit losses.
(i) Refer Annexure A - security clause of Non Convertible Debentures.

Note 20:- Other eurrent linbilities

NHALI - COS - Mob Advance received 393 43.79

Statutory dues - ; :

- TDS Liabilities 0.89 0.96
4.82 44.75

Note 21:- Current Tax Liabilities {Net)
Provision for tax (net)




Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Lid.

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at 31 March 2022

(All amount in millions unless otherwise stated)

1 April 2021 to 1 Apr 2020 to
31 March 2022 31 Mar 2021

Note 22:- Revenue From Operations
Revenue From Operations ( A)

Revenue from Operations & Maintenance of Road 211.66 201.58

Unwinding Interest Income on Annuity from NHA) 4,133.59 4,325.72
Other Operating Revenue ( B)

Utility & Change of Scope Work Receipts (net) 116.40 224.37
Modification Gain on Annuity 1,548.34 -
NHAI claim setilement Income* 5.835.70 -

Total { A+B) 11,846 4,751.86

* Not a regular income , Received on behalf of OSEPL claim settlement
Disaggregation of Revenue ’ '

Revenue based on Geography
Domestic 11,845.68 4,751.86

Export = -
Revenue from Operations 11,845.68 4,751.86
Revenue based on Business Segment
Annuity 11,729.28 4,527.30
Other Corresponding Activities on the same projec! 116.40 224.57
Total Revenue from Operation 11,845.68 4,751.86
Note 23:- Other income
Interest Received on FDR 124.58 79.91
Profit on sale of Mutual funds 84.37 147.06
Interest on Electricity Deposit ( MP) 0.05 0.05
Interest [ncome - interest bearing RPT loan 509.98 509.98
Gain on fair value of Investment 3095 68.36
Unwinding Interest [ncome on Loans to Fellow Sub 4.97 -
Refund of taxes 0.72 0.71
Miscellaneous [ncome 0.44 023
Excess Provision written back 1.51 1.89

757.57 808.19

Note 24:- Operating Expenses
Utility & Change of Scope Work Expenses 116.40 221.87
Operation & Maintenance exp 211.66 201.58
NHAI claim settlement Expense* 5.835.70 =
Claim Expense 1,548.34 2

7,712.10 423.45

* Not a regular expense , done and paid on behalf of OSEPL claim settlement
Note 25:- Finance Costs
Bank & Finance Charges 1.55 1.64
Security Trustes Fees 1.00 1.00
Interest on Debentures 1,755.01 1,932.07
Interest an Trust Loan 600.68 603.44
Interest on Late payment of Statitory Dues and incc - b gl 0.10

S 2,358.25 2,538.25
Nofe 26:- Depreciatin
Deprocailion of propery. plast snd cguipment 14 AT
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Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Led.
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at 31 March 2022

(All amount in millions unless otherwise stated)

1 April 2021 to 1 Apr 2020 to
31 March 2022 31 Mar 2021

Note 27:- Other expenses
Independent Consultancy Fees 316 5.02
Legal & Professional Charges 7.20 5.03
Business support charges 2.00 3.00
Lender Engineers Fees 0.70 0.68
Insurance Expenses 24.53 33.29
Concession fees - 0.00
CSR Expense 54.79 50.95
Rent ,Rates & Taxes 0.36 0.57
Misc Expenses 0.08 .11
Cost Audit Fees 0.06 0.05
Aunditors Expense 0.99 1.18

93.86 99.87
Payments to the Auditors as
Statutory Audit Fees 0.34 025
Tax Audit Fees 0.07 0.05
Certification work 0.21 0.56
Limited Review Fees 0.35 0.30
Reimbursement expenses 0.03 0.02

0.99 1.18

Note 28:- Tax Expense
Current Tax (MAT) 432.82 492.28
MAT Credit adjustment related earlier year (12.65) {1.33)
MAT Credit for current year (379.20) (416.40)
Deferred Tax 738.01 250.60
Total Income Tax Expense 778.99 325.16
Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate on Profit before Income Tax
Enacted Income Tax rate 34.944% 34.944%
Profit Before Tax 2,428.91 2,486.02

848.76 868.72

Current Tax expense

Tax effect of the amounts which are not deductible/ taxable in calculating taxable income

Non deductable differences {886.38) (552,77
MAT Credit recognized {132.51) (145.51)
Others 11.86 921
Total income tax expense/ credit (158.27) 179.65
Difference 937.26 145.51
Unutilized tax losses and credits Nil Nil
- Unutilized tax losses
No carry forward of losses, hence this disclosure is not applicable.
- Minimum alternate tax
Unutilized MAT credit 2,781.48 2,389.64 T
Tax credits have been recogmized on the hasis that fing i (
recovery is probable in the foresecable future. This (1‘ [ Ny Detl | )
P 7;:; I-'.‘_ ~ Year of avigination Year of Expiry \% ,;/
Iy r?ni March 2016 31 March 2031 104.76 104.76 N05555 9%/
FA -~ s
(= L X%\ 4\March 2017 31 March 2032 437.22 43722
:: DELHI ff' Mdu_h 2018 31 March 2033 368.79 368.79
‘? \z1a1ch 2019 31 March 2034 527.02 527.02
/J I March 2020 31 March 134 33544 53544
’H March 2021 31 March 2034 42905 416.40
31 March 2022 31 March 2034 379.20 -



Oviental Nagpur Betul Highway Litd.
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at 31 March 2022

{All amount in millions unless otherwise stated)

1 April 2021 to 1 Apr 2020 to
31 March 2022 31 Mar 2021

Note 29:- Earning Per Share
The Computation of basic/ diluted earning/ (loss) per share is set below

Net Profit / Loss after current & deferred tax 1,649.92 2,160.87
No of ghares outstanding at the beginning of the ye: 18.13 18.13
No of shares outstanding at the end of the year 18.13 18.13
Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs 1€ 18.13 18.13
EPS (Rs.)- Basic & Diluted 90.98 119.16

Note 30:- Commitments and Contingencies

Contingent Liabilities

Income Tax Liability under Appeal ( Addition in . 6.77 . 6.77
terms of explanation ! {f) of Sec 115JB to book

profit being exp. Incurred in relation to exempt

income inadmissible in terms of Sec. 14A)

Commitments

Estimated project cost for construction of highway
98,
to be executed a6 98.66

Note 31:- Post Retirement Benefits Plans
The Employees are on deputation from Holding Company. Post Retirement Benefits are not born by the Con

Note 32:- Empasis of Matter - COVID -19
There is no impact of Covid 19 as it has fixed annuity payments.

Note 33:- Salient aspects of Service Concession

Grant of concession

The company has been granted right of way to finance and construct the project highway. The company is
also required to manage operate and maintained the project highway during the concession period. As per
Adticle 15, the company has entered into commercial service with NHAI where upon the company is
entitled to receive annuity during the concession period w.e.f 18th feb 2015 (Provisional Commercial
operation date).

NHATI has granted concession period of 20 years to the Company for the project. Certificate of Commercial
Operation date (‘PCOD") has been obtained on 18th February, 2015 for the above stretch. Annuity
receivable from NHAI has commenced from the financial 2014-15. The Company is entitled to fixed
annuify receivable from NHAI aggregating to semi-annual installment of 2,908,000,000 over the remaining

concession periad of 17 years w.e.f 18th February, 2013,

Termination payment

An amount upon termination on NHAI default, the company is entitled to an amount equal to the
discounted value of future annuity payment. The discounting factor shall be SB1 PLR plus 3% iess

Major Maintenance expenses including overlay & resurfacing is to be incurred by the company as per the

mainienance requirement mentioned in the concession agreement.
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Note:-

Oriental Nagpur 8erul Highway Lid.
Notea formiag part of the financial statements ag a¢ 31 March 2022
{All amount in millions unless otherwise stated)

Note 37:- Assets pledged as security
The carrying Amount of assets pledged as secunity for curcent and non current botrowings are:-

Particulars As Arx As Ay

3 March 2022 31 Murch 2021
Current )
fnvestments 1,507.15 3,098.0%
Trade receivables 230 11.50
Cash and cash equivalents 835.19 789.51
(cher bank balances E =
FDR with maturity more than 12 months 325732 1,650.23
Other financial asset 5,567.00 5.341.46
Loan 3,642.70 3,743.60
Towal current asaets pledged ag security 14,818.66 14,684.39
Non-current
Property, Plant and Equipment 47.49 57.63
Loans 7167 174
Other financial asset (annuity ceceivable) 22,752.55 22976.76
Total non-currents aessets pledged as security 22,871.71 23,4213
Total assets pledged ag security 3769037 37,726.51
Note 38 :- Details of Corporate Social Responsibility - (CSR) Expenditure
Corporate social responsibility expenses: 31" March 2022 31’ March 2021
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company duning the year 54.79 50.95
{b) Amount spent during the year in cash on corporate social respornsibility 7.80

54.79 43.01

(¢} Unspent Amount deposited to separate account on Account of Ongoing Project in

pursuance of Secbon 135(5).
{d) Out of the Unspent Amount NIL, Company will deposit the entire Amount to &

Fund Specified in Schedule V1, within a period of 8ix Month from the expiry of Ilnd of

Financial Year i.e, 31 March 2022, as per Section 135(5).
{e} Total Unspent Amount incuding Previous Years Shortfall
{f) Reason for Shortfall

{g) Natute of CSR Activities.

education.
{h} Details of Related Party Transactions, if any.

{) Provision madc with respeet to 2 hability incurred by entering inta a contractual obligation.

The company has donated money to charitable trust $ansthanam Abhay Danam
to carty out various CSR activitics like saving Birds & animals, Ayurvedic, Maturopathy,

MINISTRY OF CORPORATE AFFAIR NOTIFICATION, New Delhi dated 22nd January, 2021 vide (.5.R. 40([5).—section 135 and sub-sections (1) and (2] of section 464 of the

Companies Act, 20H3 (18 of 2013}, now the company has created the unspent CSR. fund subequently on 28th April 2021,
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Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Led.

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at 31 March 2022

(All amount in millions unless otherwise stated)

Note 40:- Revenue from contracts with customers

1 Disaggregation of revenue
Revenue recognized mainly comprises of revenue from toll collections, claims with NELAL contract revenuce. Set out below is the disaggregation of the

Company’s revenue from contracts with customers:

Description For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

(A) Operating revenue
(a) Engineering, Procurement and Construction Contracts & Change of Scope 328.05 426.15
(b} Toll income from Expressway - -
(c) Interest income on annuity receivable from National Highway Authority of India (NHAI) 4,133.59 4,325.72
{d) Claim Income {Sold to Orental Stmctural Engineers Pyt Lid) -

Total revenue ! 4,461.64 4,751,86

The table below picsents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers based on nature, amount and timing for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31
March 2021:

S.Mo.  |Types of Products by Nature |Types of Services by For the year ended For the year ended
timing 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1 Goods/Service At the point of Hime 32805 426.15
2 Goods/Sernice Over the period of time 4,133.59 432572

2 Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers
The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and conteact liabilities from contract with costomers:

e As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Description
Current Current
Contract assets
Teade veccivables 9.30 11.50
Receivables undet service concession arrangements 258,319.55 28.241.97
Total 28,328.85 28,253.47

A receivable is a right to consideration that is unconditional upon passage of tme. Revenue from the contracts are recognized upon satisfaction of Performance

obligation.
Trade Recetvables are non-interest beanng and are generally due within 180 days excepr retention mooey lield by the customer as per the terms and conditions

of the contract. During the Current gear, the Company has recognized a provision for expected ceedit losses on Trade Receivables of Rs. MNil {previous year
Nil)

3 For movement in service concession acrangement, refer note 4 and 11 fot financial asser model model. "Theve ave no significant changes in other contract assets

of the group.

4 There is no adjustment made to the contract price of the contract and hence the revene recognised in che statement of profit and loss is in agreemoent ro the
with the conteacted price under the Contract.

5 Performance obligation

Contract revenue
‘I'he pesformance abligation under service concession agreements (SCA") is due on completion of work as per terms of SCA.




Swndalone summary of siguificant accountiog policies and other expl

y infor

for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note -41
Financial ratios
Rato Measurement Numerator Denominator As at As at Remarks
wnit 31 March 2022 3 March 2021
Rato Ratio

Curtent ratio Current assets Current liabilities 4.01 547 |Notc 1B below
Diebt-equiry rato Toral debr Total cquity 1.89 2.05 |Note 14 below

[Non-current borrowings + Current

botrowings)
Ratio Measurement Numerator Denceminator For the year ended | For the year ended Remarks

unit 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Ratio Ratio
Dzbt service coverage ratio Eamings before depreciation and Interest expense {including .11 1.10 |Note 14 beiow
. amortisation and interest capitalised) + Principal '

|Earnings = Profit after tax + repayment (including

Depreciation and amertisation cxpense | prepayments)

+ Finance costs (excluding interest on

lease liabilites)|
Return on equity rabio Profir after tax Average of total equity 13.43% 0.00% | Mote 1A below
Inventory mirnover tatio Costs of matedals consumed Average inventories NA NA Note 1A below
Trade reccivables tuenover Revenue from operations Average trade receivables N MNA Mot 1A below
rabio
‘I'rade payables turnover Purchases + other expenses Average wade payablos NA MNA Note 14 below
ratic |Pucchases = Pharmacy, medical and

laboratory consumables velated to Tn-

patient services + Phurmacy and

medical consumables related to sale of

phatmacy products to out-patients|
Net capital tarnover catio Revenue from operations Working capitul 136.20% 44.4% | Note 1C below

|Current assets - Cureent
liabilitics

MNet profit catic Profit after tax Revenue from operations 147, 45% Mote 1C below
Return on capital employed Fanings before depreciation and Capital employed 12.87%, 13.43% | Mote 1A below

amortisaton, interest and tax [Yoreal assers - Current

|Earnings = Profit after tax + Tax liahilities + Current

wipense + Depreciation and borrowings)

amottisation expense + Finance costs

{excluding interest on lease liabilities)]

13.45% 17.50% | Neste 1A below

Repaen on investment

Prorfiv after 1ax

[iquity share capital +
Instruments entirely cquity in
nature ¥ Sccuritics premium

Noe 1

A ‘I'he change in ratio s less than 25" ag compared o previous perod and bence, no explanation requiced.
B The change in ratio is More than 25% as compared 1o previous peaod- a) Currenl Liabilities has increased by 503.81 Millions, Also Investment in Fixed deposit
is majocly non curtent as compared to Previoys year due 1o reserve requirement, So investenent in cavrent FI>/mutual fuads is reduced by 1590.93 million
C I'he company has received a claim oof Rs 547 1.4 million (Net of Taxes) on Y March 2022 from NHAT Against the settlernent of dispute Grant of PCOLY we £ 07.1.2014 pursvant to

Article 14.2 and relevant financial implication in sccordance with Arricls 28.1 and revision of Schedule M accordingly, Pursuant 1o Share Transfer agreement dared 003-06-2019,the:

NITAT claims shall test swithoat recoutse, sresocabiy, final and forever with G316, Accondingly the abovemeniioned claim cecei ed were rransfoered e OSEPL




Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Lud.
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at 31 March 2022
(All amount in millions vnless otherwise stated)

Note 42;- Related Party disclosures as per Ind AS 24

Holding Company
Odental Infra Trust

Ultimate holding Company
Odiental Structurat Engineers Pvt, Ltd.

Associated Companics

Oriental Nagpur Byepass Construction Pvr.ld.
Fawah Chakeri (Kanput) Highway Pyt Led.
Oriental Pathways (Indore) Pyt Ltd.

OS1% Hungund Hospet Fighways Put. Ltd.

Key Managerial Person

M. Deepak Kukeeja Woeif 01 June 2020 (Independent Direetor)

Ms. Monilka Kohli W.e.f 01 June 2020 (Independent Director)

Shri Vikas Mohan (Chicf iinancial Officer)-(Deputed Staff)

My, Rakesh Gusain (Company Secretary)- (Deputed Staft) dll 16-Aug-2021
My, Prabhjor Singh (Company Sccrcrary)- (Deputed Staff) from 30-Oct-2021
Me. Sharad kumar Singh (C120) Weef 18 Aug 2020

My, Nikhil Dhingra (Director) W.e.f. 06 Jan 2020

My, Ranveer Sharma (Director) Wee. [ 06 Oct 2020

Oriental Steuctural Engineers Py, Ltd.

Change of Scope & U tility [ixpenses

Repair & Maintenance/ Operation and Maintenance
Reimbursement of Expenses

INFIAI elaim settlement Expense®

Claim Expense

Balances outstanding

Trade Payable

Mobilization/Materal Advance Given Receivable
Deferred Liability to OSE

Oriental Tollways Pvt. Led.
Reimbursement of Expenses

Balances outstanding
‘T'tade Payable

Erawah Chakeri (Kanpur) Highway Pvt. Led.
Unwinding [nterest [ncome on Loans

Balances outstanding
Unsecuted Luan Receivable

Oriental Nagpur Byepass Construction Pvr.Ltd.
Repayment received of Loan Given
Interest Income on L.oan given

Balances outstandling
Short Verm Loan
Inretest Reecivable on Toan Given

Year ended 51
March 2022

116.40
211.66
1.29
5,835.70
1,548.34

44.43
9.33
1,548.34

1.00

193

4.97

63.78

509.98

3,643

Year ended 31
March 2021

221.87
201.58
3.46

50.17
49.19

1.00

0.93

150.90

360.00
508.98

3,642.70
7625



Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Led.
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at 31 March 2622

Oriental InfraTrust

Interest on [nfra Trust Loan 600.68 603.44
Dividend Paid 1,621.28 1,405.31
Balances outstanding
Loan Payabie 4,103.52 4,103.52
Interest Payable 298.97 299.82
Shii Sharad Kumar Singh (Chief Executive Officer) - Salary & Wages 1.0 1.00
Shri Vikas Mohan (Chief Financial Officer) - Salary & Wages 100 1.00
Shti Rakesh Gussain (Company Secretary) - Salary & Wages 1.00
* The above remunetation amount is shown under common support services.

il il

Note 43:- Event Qccurring afier balance Sheet Date

Note 44:- Segment Reporting
The company being engaged in design, finance, maintenance, opetates and transfer of road (DBFOT) does not have more than one reportable

segments as per [nd AS 108 "Operating Scgment”. Further the company is canrying its business in only one geographical arca segment.

Naote 45:- NHAIL CLAIM
if1'he company has seecived a claim of Rs 54714 million (Net of Taxes) on 3lst March 2022 from NITAL Agpinst the sectlement of dispute

Gtant of PCOD w.e.f. 07.1.2014 pursuant to Article 14.2 and relevant financial implication in accordance with Atticle 28.1 and revision of
Schedule M accotdingly. Pussuant to Share Transfer agreement dated 03-06-2019,the NHAI clatms shall vest  without tecourse, ittevocably,
final and forever with OSHPL.Accordingly the abovementioned claim received were transferred to OSEDI.

ii}yAlso, due the preponement of anauity, The liabililty of of Rs 1540 million interest carned payable to OBFDPL atises. The interest payable is
computed on provisional and estitmated basis. However this matter is taken with consultants and once finalised, the interest actually earned

every year will be transferred to OSEPL.

Note 46:- INSURANCE CLATM

The Company shows insurance claim receivable of Rs 8.50 Million vis a vis liability of payable to OSEDPL is also created for the same. The
insurance company has not admicted the claim Therefore company has not recotded income as well 25 Fxpense..In case The claim is not
received , 1t will be set off with payable of OSEPL.

Note 47:- TRADE RECEIVABLE

‘Ihe company Shows Trade teceivables from NHAI of Rs 8.97 Million for the change of scope expenses done. The same is payable to OSEPL.
“Thetefore the company has not done the provisioning for trade receivable and not tecognised the expected credit Joss as same will be set off
against the payable of OSIEPLL if not received from NEIAL

Note 48:- Accounting Pronucements
DIND AS 109 Financial lnstroments- 'The financial reporting of Iinancial assets and IYinancial abilities are done as per INL} AS 109

IND A& 37 Provisons, contingent liability and contignent Assets- The provisions and contingenr Liabilities ate tecognived and nicasured
according to the INLY AS 37

HIINTY AS 16 Property , Plant & liquipment- The recognisation of carrying amonat and im airement are measured according to IND AS 16
perty quip g TryIng K 2




Oriental Nagpur Betul Highway Led.
Notes forming part of the financial stacements as at 31 March 2022

Note 49:- Other Disclosures

a) No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding 2oy benami ptoperty under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988} and the Rules made thereunder

b)  The Company has not been declred willful defaultet by any bank or financial institution or other lendet.
¢)  The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or

section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956

d)  The Company has complied the aumber of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies
(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

c) No Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the
Compaaics Act, 2013 during the cuttent as well as the previous year.

() The company has not advanced or loaned ot invested funds (either borrowed funds ot share premium or any other source
ot kind of funds) to any other person(s) ot entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing ot otherwise) that the Intermediary shall {i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons ot eatities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company {Ultimate Beneficiaries} or (ii)
provide any guarantee, security ot the like to ot on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics,

(i)  The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ics), including forcign cntities (Funding Party) with
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall: (i} directly ot indirectly lend or invest
in other petsons or cntitics identified in any manner whatsoever by ot on behalf of the Tunding Party (Uhtimate
Beneficiaries) ot (if) provide any guarantee, security or the iike to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beacficiaries,

o) "The Company does not have aay transaction not tecorded in the books of accounts that has beca sutrendeted of disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search ot survey or any other

relevant ptovisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)
h)  'The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Cureency ot Virtual Curvency during the financial year as well as in the
previous financial year.

i The Company has not made any contribution to any political party during the current financial year as well as in the
previous financial year.

Note 50:- Approval of Financial Statements
The fnancial statements wete authotized by the Board of Directors on 23 hMay 2022,

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For KG SOMANT & CO LLP For and on behalf of the hoard of directors

T AW A

{Formerly known as K G Somani & Co.)
oy~

Nilchil Diingra Ranveer Sharma

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No:- 006591N /N500377
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